BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR MEETING

Thursday, February 25, 2016, 3:00 p.m.

Detroit Public Safety Headquarters

1301 Third Street

Detroit, Michigan 48226

1	COMMISSIONERS:
2	Linda Bernard, Attorney to the Board
3	Lisa Carter, Chairperson (Dist. 6)
4	Willie E. Bell, Vice-Chairperson (Dist. 4)
5	Reginald Crawford, Commissioner (Dist. 3)
6	Ricardo Moore, Commissioner (Dist. 7)
7	Willie E. Burton, Commissioner (Dist. 5)
8	Richard Shelby, Commissioner (Dist. 1)
9	Conrad Mallett, Jr., Appointed
10	Eva Dewaelshe, Appointed
11	Derek Sanders, Appointed
12	Elizabeth Brooks, Appointed
13	REPRESENTING THE CHIEF OF POLICE'S OFFICE:
14	Charles Fitzgerald - Deputy Chief of Police
15	FROM THE POLICE DEPARTMENT:
16	Pamela Davis-Drake - Chief Investigator
17	Cheryl McCoy-O'Neill - Chief Investigator Alan Quinn - Sergeant
18	Kyra Hope - Captain Michael Chambers - Captain
19	William Simms - Lieutenant Carolyn Nichols - Investigator
20	Abdullah Nelson - Supervising Investigator Celia Washington - Second Deputy Chief
21	FROM THE COMMISSION:
22	Robert Brown - Administrative Assistant
23	OTHER SPEAKERS:
24	Ian Conyers
25	Marcellus Bryce Bernice Smith



			Page
1			
2		INDEX	
3	ACTION		PAGE
4	1	Call to Order	4
5	2	Invocation	4
6	3	Duties and Responsibilities	5
7	4	Approval of Agenda, February 25, 2016	8
8	5	Approval of Minutes for February 18, 2016	8
9	6	BOPC Officers' Report	8
10		1. Chairperson	
11	7	Report from OCI, CI Drake	9
12		Fitzgerald speaks on behalf of the Chief	24
13		Deputy Chief Washington, re: American Heart Association	25
14		Captain Hope, Black History Month	28
1516		1 Civil Rights, Lieutenant Simms	37
17		Certificate of Appreciation to Gil Hill	42
18	8	Standing Committee Report	40
19		1. BOPC Bylaws	41
20	9	Old Business	45
21	10	Announcements	45
22	11	Oral Communication from the Audience	46
23	12	Adjournment	61
24			
25			



- Detroit, Michigan 2 Thursday, February 25, 2015 3 3:01 p.m.
- CHAIR CARTER: Good afternoon. 4
- 5 Welcome to the Board of Police Commissioners' 6 weekly meeting. My name is Lisa Carter, Chair for the
- 7 Commission.

- 8 At this time, I'm going to ask that we all,
- 9 in remembrance of --
- 10 VICE-CHAIR BELL: Hayes.
- 11 CHAIR CARTER: Thank you.
- 12 -- Director Scott Hayes, who was in an 13 accident this past week, we're going to have a moment 14 of silence, please. Thank you.
- 15 Thank you. At this time, I'm going to ask 16 that Vice-Chair Bell do the invocation, please -- I'm sorry. Go ahead. 17
- 18 VICE-CHAIR BELL: You're fine. Let us pray.
- 19 Heavenly Father, we thank you for another
- 20 blessed and rewarding day. We thank you for this
- 21 opportunity to come before you as a Board. We pray for
- 2.2 our board members. We pray for our Police Department
- under Chief Craig. We pray, too, for our Mayor in the 23
- 24 City of Detroit, Heavenly Father.
- 25 We heard that we need a blessing from you, as



	Page 5
1	people say, we need a word from the Lord. We just lift
2	up you. We lift up our citizens. We lift up those who
3	are in need, those who are in trouble. Those who are
4	blessed should share their blessing with others,
5	Heavenly Father.
6	We appreciate all the love and fellowship
7	that we have in the City. It was a blessing to be at
8	the State of the City on Tuesday night. We heard a
9	word, a visionary for this City, a visionary of
10	leadership, a collective body in terms of people coming
11	together over 2,000 strong. We thank you for this
12	opportunity as Board of Police Commission.
13	We pray as we move forward that we brew in
14	unity and in collective spirit. We come to you in
15	Jesus' name. Let us all say
16	BOARD MEMBERS: Amen.
17	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner Bell.
18	At this time I'm going to ask that
19	Attorney Bernard call the roll, please.
20	MS. BERNARD: Okay. Thank you,
21	Madam Chairwoman.
22	Willie E. Bell?
23	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Present.
24	MS. BERNARD: Elizabeth Brooks?



COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Present.

	Page 6
1	MS. BERNARD: Willie E. Burton?
2	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Present.
3	MS. BERNARD: Reginald Crawford?
4	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Present.
5	MS. BERNARD: Eva Dewaelshe?
6	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSHE: Present.
7	MS. BERNARD: Conrad Mallett, Junior?
8	COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Here.
9	MS. BERNARD: Ricardo R. Moore?
10	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Present.
11	MS. BERNARD: Derrick Sanders.
12	COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Present.
13	MS. BERNARD: Richard Shelby.
14	COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Present.
15	MS. BERNARD: Madam Chairperson,
16	Bishop Edgar Vann, III has asked to be excused. You
17	have a quorum of ten.
18	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you. At this time, I'd
19	like to introduce
20	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD1: Deputy Chief,
21	Charles Fitzgerald.
22	CHAIR CARTER: It's Chief Fitzgerald?
23	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD1: Yes, from the
24	Detective Bureau, sitting in for the Chief.
25	MS. BERNARD: Thank you, sir. Is there



	Page 7
1	anyone else from your staff that you would like to
2	introduce as well?
3	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD1: Yeah, I've got
4	Captain Hope is in the back and Captain Chambers and
5	you'll be hearing from Lieutenant Simms shortly.
6	CHAIR CARTER: All right. Thank you, sir.
7	And, Ms. Bernard, could you please introduce
8	the rest of the Board Staff?
9	MS. BERNARD: Yes, Madam chairperson.
10	George Anthony is excused. Gail Oxendine is excused.
11	Pamela Davis-Drake is present in the first seat right
12	there, the Chief Investigator. Robert Brown, the
13	Administrative Assistant is here, conducting helping
14	the recorder, who is, today, Sergeant Alan Quinn and
15	Mona Storm, who is our court reporter from Hanson Court
16	Reporting. That completes our introductions,
17	Madam Chairperson.
18	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you. Attorney Bernard.
19	At this time, Commissioners, you have before
20	you the agenda for Thursday, February 25th. Is there a
21	motion to approve the agenda?
22	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: So move.
23	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSHE: Support.
24	CHAIR CARTER: It's been moved that we
25	support the agenda. Those in favor?



Page 8 1 BOARD MEMBERS: Aye. 2 CHAIR CARTER: Those opposed? 3 Motion carries. 4 At this time, Commissioners, you have before 5 you the minutes from Thursday, February the 18th. there a motion to approve the minutes? 6 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So move. 7 8 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSHE: Support. 9 CHAIR CARTER: It's been moved and supported 10 that we approve the minutes from February 18th, 2016. Is there any discussion? 11 Those in favor? 12 13 BOARD MEMBERS: Aye. 14 CHAIR CARTER: Those opposed? 15 The motion carries. At this time, Item 9 on 16 the agenda, the Chairperson's report. 17 This week -- this past week, we all had the 18 opportunity to attend -- although all of us weren't 19 there -- to attend the State of the City address and I 20 must say that I'm inspired by the work that has been 21 done and really inspired by the stories that were told 2.2 by the Mayor of the City of Detroit. And I was 23 particularly happy about just our involvement in the 24 process.



And it's been three years coming that we

	Page 9
1	actually got acknowledged at the meeting. That had not
2	happened before since this Board has been convened. So
3	I was very pleased with that this week. And many of
4	you attended and I'm sure you probably felt the same
5	way, included; so we're happy about that.
6	The other thing, the second thing that I want
7	to talk about, earlier today we had a meeting with
8	Second Deputy Chief Washington regarding towing. So,
9	coming down the pipeline in a few weeks, we're going to
10	be getting some information about towing. They're in
11	the process of approving applications for the tow
12	companies so we are going to get an update.
13	Attorney Bernard's going to be putting us
14	together some information so that we're informed when
15	we have to make some decisions regarding the towing, at
16	least for the Police Department. And that concludes my
17	report for this week.
18	Okay. At this time, we're going to have the
19	report from OCI, Chief Investigator Drake. Thank you,
20	ma'am.
21	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Good afternoon,
22	everyone.
23	BOARD MEMBERS: Good afternoon.
24	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: For the record,
25	Pamela Davis-Drake, Chief Investigator.



	Page 10
1	I'd like to, I guess, begin by acknowledging,
2	I have two staff present, I'd like to introduce them.
3	If it pleases the Board, it is Investigator
4	Carolyn Nichols from the Office of the Chief
5	Investigator and also Supervising Investigator
6	Abdullah Nelson, also from the Office of the Chief
7	Investigator. So they've been attending the meetings
8	and they need to be acknowledged for all the good work
9	that they do.
10	CHAIR CARTER: Absolutely. Thank you, ma'am.
11	Thank you for coming.
12	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: All right. Our
13	current statistics, as of today, Thursday,
14	February 25th, 2016, we have a total of 137 cases.
15	Seven cases have either been submitted to myself or to
16	the supervisor for review and pending closure and we
17	have no cases over 90 days.
18	I'll give you a quick update on the build-out
19	at Headquarters here. The build-out is underway.
20	Phase One is underway. I'm told that the first two
21	teams, the team that is currently occupying the Seventh
22	Floor in the fire side, Fire Department side, will be
23	able to move into the suite, probably, Monday and as

a team there as well.

24

25

well as the folks that are on the sixth floor. We have

1	Still waiting on the furniture to come for
2	the team that's currently in the Board's office, and
3	that's going to be a couple of weeks, from my
4	understanding. So I'll keep you posted on that. But
5	it is underway, it's moving very quickly. And, again,
6	everyone has been very accommodating so we appreciate
7	it. And I, again, thank the Board for assisting us
8	last week.
9	All right. Our statistics for the month of

All right. Our statistics for the month of January 2016, the monthly count of complaints, 91, which represents a 21 percent increase, actually, from last year at this time. Year to date, at the end of January 2016, the Office of the Chief Investigator had 157 open investigations, 91 cases that were closed -- or I'm sorry -- 91 cases filed and 107 cases closed.

We received 91 cases that the -- of the 91 cases filed in January, 38 percent involved unknown officers. Of the alleged known units involving leading in complaints were 6 percent -- or Sixth Precinct, 12 percent; 12th Precinct at 10 percent; and the Ninth Precinct at 6 percent.

The 91 cases filed in January involved 159 allegations. The leading areas of concern were, as they normally are, 28 percent demeanor and procedure at 24 percent -- those are standard as being, usually, the



	Page 12
1	highest in allegations service, 12 percent and force
2	at 9 percent. We had 107 cases that were closed in
3	January and they involved allegations where the
4	findings were as follows:
5	35 percent were not sustained, 17 percent

2.2

35 percent were not sustained, 17 percent were exonerated, there were 15 percent were unfounded and 12 percent were sustained. Of the leading areas of concern in 107 cases that were closed, procedure and demeanor, again, were the top; 35 percent for procedure, 26 percent for demeanor, service, 9 percent, and force at 8 percent.

And you all do have, also, a summary of cases that were closed and allegations in your packets as well as complaints for unknown officers; you also have that in your packets. And, also, you should have received this week -- I think it was this week, I sent you the allegations and the findings from Disciplinary. So I hope everyone did receive that and you had the opportunity to review it. It was a yearlong, the entire year, for all the cases that we've handled that have been sustained, with sustained findings through the Office of the Chief Investigator.

And the commanding officers in the Disciplinary administration did provide those reports to us and we did rectify all of those so you should



	rage 13
1	have them for the entire year. We're going to do those
2	every two months. It's a little behind. When we close
3	a case out in January, it takes a while for
4	Disciplinary to receive a case and to process it. So
5	we want to make sure that they have plenty of time to
6	process those cases.
7	So the cases for January, we won't request
8	that report until March. And that should give them
9	adequate time.
10	Okay. Are there any questions?
11	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioners, any questions
12	for Chief Investigator Drake?
13	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair.
14	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner.
15	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Chief Drake, if there is
16	an issue with a complaint that a citizen doesn't like
17	the results
18	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Uh-huh.
19	COMMISSIONER MOORE: what is the process
20	to complain about it?
21	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: To appeal?
22	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Appeal.
23	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Yeah. We have a
24	very detailed appeal process. As a matter of fact, I'm
25	in the process of getting that together. I'll have



	Page 14
1	that for you for tomorrow and I'll send it out to
2	everyone.
3	But every citizen has the right to appeal a
4	complaint. It goes through, first, the Citizens
5	Complaint Committee of the board and they review the
6	file to determine whether or not it is something that
7	needs to go further.
8	If there is a decision made for it to go
9	before the full board, then it then goes to the full
10	board. So, yeah, we do have a very detailed process
11	and I will make sure you have that tomorrow.
12	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you, ma'am. And
13	do we have a contact number so a citizen can call you
14	to speak or
15	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: To they can
16	always call the main number; someone's always manning
17	that from 8:00 to 4:00. And that number is
18	(313) 596-2499.
19	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you, ma'am.
20	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: You are more than
21	welcome.
22	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner Crawford?
23	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Madam Chair, yes,
24	ma'am.
25	Chief Drake, I received your appeal process



2.2

via e-mail, I think it was a couple weeks back or three
weeks ago three weeks ago and I want to thank you
for that and read it, in terms of the appeal process
for complaints.

Page 15

Also, too, what is disturbing to me is the 21 percent increase in complaints. I will definitely be so glad when this Detroit Police Department gets the body cams. It's been documented in some of the other cities, complaints have decreased by 70 percent, use of force has -- I'm sorry, decreased by 70 percent, use of force has decreased by, some, 80 and 90 percent in some of these other cities. It is disturbing to see a 21 percent increase; that's kind of a red flag for me.

Also, too, in terms of the move for OCI, I would welcome a walk-through once the office is open, the furniture is in there so I can, you know, just look and make sure that everything seems to be in place.

And, if you need anything, let us know, the commissioners also. You can still occupy my space because I know it's needed so you can continue to squat there.

As soon as we can get this resolved, and I think you stated last week it will probably be a year of so, we'll still be out of -- the commissioners will be out of our offices. But, again, you know, for the



	Page 16
1	sake of fiscal responsibility, it is fiscally sound to
2	do that this time; that's my opinion anyway, as a
3	commissioner. Thank you.
4	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Okay. Thank you.
5	I do want to respond to both of those.
6	You will have, once this modification is made
7	and the team that is currently in the Board's office
8	that's occupying the Board's office right now moves
9	out, there will be additional spaces for board members.
L O	Also, just keep in mind that the we have
11	also blocked off from 12:00 to 6:00 on Thursdays for
12	the Board to be in the conference room if they need it;
13	that space is certainly yours. And we're we are
4	squatting in this space at this time. But there is
15	we will make every accommodation necessary if you need
16	space.
L7	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.
18	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Absolutely.
19	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: And, also, as a
20	follow-up, too, I want to thank you for the I guess
21	the spreadsheet or the data for the previous year, in
22	terms of all of the cases that were sustained.
23	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: That was a joint
24	effort.



COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. I want

	rage 1/
1	to thank you and your staff and all the investigator.
2	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: And also the
3	yeah.
4	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: And I believe it was
5	Internal Affairs as well.
6	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: No, that was
7	through Disciplinary administration.
8	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Disciplinary?
9	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Yes.
10	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.
11	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Commander Sims and
12	her team.
13	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: And I await, as I
14	know all the other Commissioners await the information
15	coming from Internal Affairs. Discipline, in terms of
16	there I guess you would call it annual in terms
17	of the actions that were taken against via discipline,
18	just in terms of just the numbers of officers or things
19	that have occurred in the last year or so.
20	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Okay. Has that
21	been formally that request been formally made to
22	them?
23	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.
24	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Okay.
25	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I think three weeks



	Page 18
1	ago you referenced the fact that they were working on a
2	major FOIA or something like that.
3	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: That was for us.
4	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Oh, for you?
5	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: They were getting
6	information for us together but I don't know if a
7	formal request had been made to Internal Affairs but I
8	will certainly pass this on to the powers at be.
9	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: But, also yes,
10	ma'am, in the past, too, we did receive one a couple
11	months back, two or three months back, that was a
12	spreadsheets from Internal Affairs which was from
13	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: That was our
14	spreadsheet, the one that you
15	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: From Commander
16	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Commander Sims.
17	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Came through
18	Commander Sims?
19	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Yes.
20	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. Okay.
21	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: That was the
22	spreadsheet that you requested for sustained cases
23	through the Office of the Chief Investigator.
24	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.



CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Yep. And that's

Page 19 1 what you just got; you got the year for those cases. 2 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. 3 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: But I will make 4 sure I pass that information along. I know that 5 Captain Chambers, also, is here so I'm sure he heard 6 that request. COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. 7 8 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: All right. 9 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: All right. 10 very much, ma'am. 11 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: All right. And, also, I do want to address the comment about the 12 13 21 percent increase. For the last year, pretty -- it's 14 been pretty consistent that that number has actually 15 decreased. 16 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. 17 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: The overall numbers. There -- it -- I know the Chief hates when I 18 19 say this, but oftentimes, our cases are seasonal. 20 the weather gets warmer, our caseload increases. When 21 the weather gets cooler and colder, then the cases 2.2 decrease. But keep in mind we have had a very mild winter. That's all I'm saying. 23 24 I just think we should keep in mind that this



may -- it's -- I doubt it will be a trend but let's

1	keep an eye on it. It's not something to necessarily
2	alert us, at this point, because the numbers have
3	consistently been getting lower.
4	And you'll see that. I'm finishing up the
5	annual report and you'll be able to see that, very
6	clearly, how the numbers from the for the last seven
7	or eight years have significantly been reduced. So
8	we're on the right trend. This could just be an
9	anomaly, so I do want to keep an eye on it.
10	Obviously, as you stated, sir, I agree with
11	you, it's something to be aware of and to keep an eye
12	on but it may just be an anomaly. Okay?
13	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.
14	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: All right.
15	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Well, when you say
16	"the weather", I kind of think, well, do we need to
17	issue travel advisories now in the City of Detroit?
18	So thank you.
19	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Okay. Not a
20	problem.
21	CHAIR CARTER: Any other questions,
22	Commissioners?
23	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Madam Chair?
24	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner Bell.
25	VICE-CHAIR BELL: I just want to first of



1	all, I want to commend Chief Drake for doing an
2	outstanding job, as always.
3	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Thank you, sir.
4	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Your report is always on
5	point and very thorough. I'd like to make a request
6	for our community meeting in March. I would hope that,
7	perhaps, your office could have some pamphlets
8	available
9	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Sure.
10	VICE-CHAIR BELL: just going into the
11	Hispanic community. And is there anything we can do as
12	far as bilingual information, though; could we do
13	something like that on those pamphlets?
14	Because I attended a couple forums that are
15	hosted by Michigan United in terms of and that's
16	overall some of the consensus is that we have a
17	language barrier and that's why they was not reporting,
18	interactions. So, perhaps, we can reassure, maybe even
19	do a little brief PowerPoint, to talk about our role in
20	the community. I think that would be quite positive,
21	if we move towards 2016 it's sad, in terms of
22	Commissioner Dewaelshe's concern in making sure that
23	all people are included in terms of there should be no
24	barrier.



I know that's not the case but I want to make

Page 22 1 sure that our office is reaching out a little bit more 2 in terms of that dialogue, you know. 3 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Yes, sir. We are 4 so on the same page. I actually just had this 5 conversation with Senior Investigator Rosalia Madrigal. VICE-CHAIR BELL: Okay. 6 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: She is one of the 7 8 people that helped put all of these wonderful reports 9 together for you, these statistical reports. 10 also from the Hispanic community. 11 VICE-CHAIR BELL: Right. 12 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: And she is fluent, 13 obviously, in Spanish. And we talked about -- just 14 recently, within the last week or so, about putting our 15 pamphlet -- making that bilingual --16 VICE-CHAIR BELL: Okay. 17 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: -- so that it 18 would be conducive to the needs of the Hispanic 19 community as well. And I will talk to her about a 20 presentation, perhaps, in Spanish that would be helpful 21 for the citizens when we go to the -- southwest 2.2 Detroit. 23 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSHE: So Madam Chair, if I 24 may?



CHAIR CARTER: Yes.

1	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSHE: Yes, I know that
2	Robert, Mr. Brown, has been working with
3	Maria Carmen Munoz who is the Operations Manager at
4	LA SED and he she's already going to be translating
5	some one-page, two-page fliers. So, if you have any
6	materials that could be done, you know, one or two
7	pages, they could probably do it in time for the
8	meeting
9	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: That would be
10	wonderful.
11	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSHE: March 10th.
12	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: I will get that to
13	Mr. Brown and he can pass that on; I'll do that
14	tomorrow.
15	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSHE: And, in terms of
16	having the presentation in Spanish and English, maybe
17	that's something that Mr. Brown could talk with
18	Ms. Munoz about to see if it can be done.
19	MR. BROWN: Uh-huh.
20	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSHE: Thank you.
21	CHAIR CARTER: Any other questions?
22	Thank you.
23	Thank you, ma'am.
24	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Thank you.
25	CHAIR CARTER: Okay.



1	Deputy Chief Fitzgerald?
2	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Yes?
3	CHAIR CARTER: The floor is yours.
4	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Thank you, Madam
5	Chair.
6	Real quickly, the Chief sends his regards.
7	He has back-to-back speaking engagements. So,
8	unfortunately, you're all stuck with me today.
9	First and foremost, you know, and with a
10	heavy heart, you had mentioned earlier that we did lose
11	Director Hayes in a car accident. There's visitation
12	tonight from 5:00 to 8:00 at the Michigan Memorial
13	Funeral Home, located at 30895 West Huron River Drive,
14	Flat Rock, Michigan.
15	And there will be Director Hayes will be
16	lying in state tomorrow morning at 10:00 a.m. followed
17	by a Catholic service at 11:00 a.m., same location;
18	Michigan Memorial Funeral Home, 30895 West Huron River
19	Drive, in Flat Rock.
20	The hard working men and women of the Detroit
21	Police Department have just been doing a bang-up job,
22	high visibility. Once again, the response time is
23	down, right around that 14 number, 14-minute mark.
24	Crime is we had a bad weekend last weekend but, all
25	in all, it's trending down still so which is good.



1	Lastly, today is the final day for the
2	Sergeant's assessment. So I would imagine the local
3	taverns downtown will be filled up once they're
4	finished and then the Lieutenants start their process
5	to be processed tomorrow. So we're excited for them.
6	A minor mishap of an elevator but, other than that,
7	things have been going well.
8	And that's all for the Chief.
9	CHAIR CARTER: Any questions for
10	Deputy Chief Fitzgerald, Commissioners?
11	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Madam Chair?
12	CHAIR CARTER: Um-hmm.
13	VICE-CHAIR BELL: I'd like to have Deputy
14	Chief Washington speak to the forum that was held here
15	yesterday, in terms of the American Heart Association.
16	And he can give us a brief overview. I attended. It
17	was very interesting, in terms of the health issue and
18	the forum itself. And so I just wanted to
19	DEPUTY CHIEF WASHINGTON: Thank you, sir.
20	Celia Washington. And I do appreciate the
21	Commissioner for supporting yesterday as well as
22	Linda Bernard. Yesterday was one of the I think
23	it's the third Lunch & Learn that we have sponsored as
24	part of the DPD Fit. Yesterday was particularly hosted
25	by the American Heart Association, who we've partnered

1	1.0
1	with.
_	W I I.II .

Roop Raj was the moderator. AC Stair did the
welcome, and Chief, even after he had to attend a
funeral, came in to speak to the group. But it was
very, very helpful. We had the panelists consisted
of two heart attack survivors who just didn't look
if there is a look didn't look like people who would
be suffering from heart disease. And there was a
nutritionist.

And I think the biggest take-away for me was the effects of stress and how toxins are released into the body. You could be doing all the right things and there is no certain look. And I'm sure Commissioner Mallet sees this firsthand. There's no certain lack for people that suffer from that.

That's just one of three, actually, in the month of March -- and I appreciate the opportunity to mention this -- we're going to be sponsoring one for orthopedics. And, as you know, many of our officers suffer from lower back and knee and hip issues because of the weight of the belt. So we're going to be partnering with DMC. We're going to have doctors coming to talk to us about orthopedic health.

VICE-CHAIR BELL: Thank you.

CHAIR CARTER: Thank you. And when you say



1	"the belt", you mean the gun belt?
2	DEPUTY CHIEF WASHINGTON: The gun belt, yes.
3	CHAIR CARTER: Yes, ma'am.
4	DEPUTY CHIEF WASHINGTON: Thank you.
5	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes. Through the
6	Chair on another subject.
7	Thank you, Chief Washington, for the
8	information on the ruling from Judge Nancy Edmondson,
9	the federal judge.
10	DEPUTY CHIEF WASHINGTON: Thank you, sir.
11	And I appreciate you bringing that up last week.
12	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.
13	DEPUTY CHIEF WASHINGTON: Because, even
14	though we are somewhat divorced from the Animal Control
15	business, as you know, there has to be a formal
16	recommendation brought before City Council before that
17	actual transfer has happened. To my knowledge, that
18	hasn't. But we are Dr. El-Sayed is is the
19	Director.
20	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.
21	DEPUTY CHIEF WASHINGTON: And as you wee
22	there and thank you again for bringing that up
23	all the Animal Control inspectors and officers have
24	been directed to stand down.



25

COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. Thank

1	you very much.
2	DEPUTY CHIEF WASHINGTON: Thank you, sir.
3	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair?
4	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner Moore.
5	COMMISSIONER MOORE: How is the officer that
6	had the asthma attack or
7	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: She's doing better.
8	A combination of an asthma attack and a panic attack,
9	most likely.
10	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you.
11	CHAIR CARTER: All right. At this time, if
12	there are no more questions or comments, Captain Hope
13	is going to come forward, highly recommended, with a
14	presentation regarding Black History Month. We hear
15	you put on a heck of a show.
16	CAPTAIN HOPE: Okay.
17	CHAIR CARTER: That's what we heard.
18	CAPTAIN HOPE: All right. Well, it is truly
19	an honor to be here today. And thank you so much for
20	my accolades on my little story-telling but I must say
21	they were to children. The story was to children. So,
22	if you guys can go back in the day and give me just a
23	little bit of your your childhood.
24	There's tidbits of information for Black
25	History. And one of the things we really want to



1	recognize and we really didn't know about is how Black
2	History Month came about. February. How did all this
3	happen? So what I did, I just put something together
4	for the children and to give them tidbits of
5	information and try to read it as a bedtime story, in
6	hopes that they would grasp the information. So here
7	we go:
8	Black history. The history of Black History
9	Month. Black History Month, also called
10	African-American History. This event originally began
11	as our Negro History Week in 1926. It took place
12	during the second week of February because it coincided
13	with the birthdates of Frederick Douglass and
14	Abraham Lincoln. A Harvard-trained historian by the
15	name of Carter Woodson is credited with the creation of
16	Negro History Week.
17	In 1976, the Bicentennial of the United
18	States, President Gerald Ford expanded the week into a
19	full month. He said the country needed to seize the

States, President Gerald Ford expanded the week into a full month. He said the country needed to seize the opportunity to honor the two often-neglected accomplishments of Black Americans in every area of endeavor throughout our history. So let's share about five reasons why we should celebrate Black History Month.

First: Celebrating Black History Month



20

21

22

23

24

honors the historic leaders of the black community,
such as Martin Luther King. And heroes like him
deserve honor for the sacrifice and suffering they
endured for the sake of racial equality. Celebrating
Black History month allows us to pause and to remember
their stories so that we can commemorate their
achievements

Two: Black History Month for us to become better stewards of the privileges that we have gained. For example, if we don't tell our stories, the next generation will forget as well as ourselves. Like telling the stories of the Tuskegee airmen to children who had never learned of such events and the men and women who took part in them. Students, we must not take for granted of the rights that many people before them sweated, bled and died to secure. Apart from an awareness of the past, we can never appreciate the blessings we enjoy in the present.

Three: Black History Month provides an opportunity to highlight the best of Black History Culture. Black History Month provides a chance to focus on different aspects of African-Americans. We can applaud Madam C. J. Walker as the first self-made black female millionaire in the U.S. We can glance our eyes across the verses of poetry by Phillis Wheatley,

	Page 31
1	the first black African-American poet and first
2	African-American female to publish a book. And we can
3	groove to the soulful jazz and somber blues music
4	composed by the likes of Miles Davis and
5	Robert Johnson. The Black History Month spurs us to
6	speak out and seek out and lift up the best in
7	African-American accomplishments.
8	And, four: Celebrating Black History Month
9	creates an awareness for all people. When we observe
10	Black History Month, we give citizens of all races the
11	opportunity to learn about our past and of people of
12	which they may have little awareness.
13	And, five: Celebrating Black History Month
14	reminds us all that Black History is our history. The
15	impact African-Americans have made on this country is
16	part of our collective consciousness. Contemplating
17	Black History draws people of every race into grand and
18	diverse stories in this nation.
19	And then, do you all know the first black
20	female Chief of Police?
21	I'll give you a piece of candy if you can
22	answer that.
23	So in 2002, Ella Bully-Cummings was the first
24	appointed black female Assistant Chief of Police. And
25	in 2004 she became appointed to the first



Page 32 1 African-American female Chief of Police. We'll close 2 on that. 3 CHAIR CARTER: Captain, we might have questions or comments that you -- before you run off. 4 CAPTAIN HOPE: Yes, I'm running off. 5 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the Chair, are 6 you on tour with that? 7 CAPTAIN HOPE: You know, it was such an honor 8 9 to be asked to do some tidbits of information for the 10 children. So we're always stopping in our schedules to 11 do that and it's -- it's a pleasure. 12 COMMISSIONER MOORE: That was great. I 13 enjoyed it. 14 CAPTAIN HOPE: Thank you. 15 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Yes. Captain Hope. 16 CAPTAIN HOPE: Yes, ma'am? 17 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I'm not a child but I 18 thoroughly enjoyed that. 19 CAPTAIN HOPE: Thank you. 20 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I learned information that I did not know. I learned dates that I did not 21 2.2 know. And I think you did a wonderful job and it would be so wonderful if you would take that to the Charles 23 24 H. Wright Museum for the children's room. We would



appreciate it.

	Page 33
1	CAPTAIN HOPE: Yes, ma'am, I will do that.
2	COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Thank you.
3	CAPTAIN HOPE: Thank you so much.
4	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Madam Chair.
5	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner Crawford.
6	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.
7	Captain Hope, thank you very much.
8	And also thank you to Dr. Carter G. Woodson,
9	his book, The Miseducation of the Negro. It's a great
10	book, it's a recommend reading. It should be and it
11	should be a required reading, also, too. But he was
12	I consider him the father of Black History Month,
13	Dr. Carter G. Woodson.
14	Thank you very much, though, for that
15	presentation
16	CAPTAIN HOPE: Thank you.
17	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: and presentation.
18	CAPTAIN HOPE: Thank you so much.
19	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Madam Chair, I just want to
20	say
21	CHAIR CARTER: Captain.
22	VICE-CHAIR BELL: to Captain Hope, thank
23	you. We spoke briefly this morning and I conveyed to
24	you that we would be very receptive to whatever you
25	presented to this Board, as far as Black History Month.



	Page 34
1	Because, as Commissioner Brooks indicated, and I recall
2	a long time ago in middle school or elementary school,
3	I was part of Negro History Club and, you know, even
4	today it's debated about how they teach Black History
5	in the public school system in Detroit.
6	And I thought I knew a whole lot about Black
7	History and as I took courses later on in college. But
8	the bottom line is that my wife come from Mississippi,
9	a predominant black school and they embedded Black
10	History all the way through high school, in terms of
1	generation to generation, they really did an excellent
12	job. And I know sometime we made that transition to
13	the urban environment, we forgot a whole lot of our
L 4	history. And you just reminded us, in terms of sharing
15	that experience.
16	I'd just like you to say briefly, I know you
L 7	as a knew you as a working officer in Narcotics.
18	Could you give this Board a little background on your
19	resume, please.
20	CAPTAIN HOPE: Oh, my goodness.
21	VICE-CHAIR BELL: I think it's rather unique,
22	in terms of her experience, in growing as a Captain
23	now.
24	But just give us a little bit of background;



I would appreciate it.

1	CAPTAIN HOPE: Just briefly, Narcotics was a
2	big part of my career; I did that for many, many, many
3	years. I worked DEA as well. I worked interdiction, I
4	hopped the planes, I did surveillance, a lot of
5	translating, had a lot of high-profile cases, put a lot
6	of people into custody. I became one of the major
7	kingpins here in Covert Operations here during my tour
8	at DEA.
9	Subsequently, I also worked one of the
10	first females there at Gang Squad. I did Gang Squad
11	for approximately five years, first female to have a
12	crew. From there, I was appointed to a task to clean
13	the streets up from warrants. And myself, along with
14	Sergeant Chappa from Armed Robbery developed this
15	taskforce which is known to you as today as the FAST
16	team. We did very, very well in that, very successful.
17	And I was promoted from there from a sergeant
18	to a lieutenant and from there I did my tour at the
19	12th Precinct as the officer in charge of midnight
20	shift. And there I think I stayed for 14 years as a
21	lieutenant. So, overall, I've served the City for 36
22	years.

I've been with DPD coming up on my 29th year of service. I've worked for, pretty much, all the chiefs, administratively, in and out and we've just



23

24

1	been truly, truly handling our business, trying to be
2	community servants, trying to piecemeal the City back
3	and giving everyone hope, as my name says. And I think
4	that we're we're making our mark on that. And it's
5	truly a blessing to be here after serving 29 years;
6	that's a long time.
7	And when I look back and since we are in
8	Black History, you think I started with Chief Hart.
9	And Chief Hart was there, and Bannum next door.
L 0	Ella Chief Ella Bully was a sergeant. I was a young
L1	PO, coming on. I actually worked for Jimmy Younger.
L2	And so I got training of the best of the best, I
L3	believe. And just coming up the ranks and and
L 4	seeing everyone that's here today making their mark, we
15	had great friendship and we still do. And it's just a
L 6	blessing for everybody to still be together trying to
L7	make this a number one city and which I believe that we
L 8	are.
L 9	So thank you.
20	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner Crawford?
21	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Keep hope alive.
22	CHAIR CARTER: Oh, yeah, keep hope alive.
23	Thank you, Captain Hope.
24	At this time, we're going to have the



presentation by Civil Rights Department.

1	LIEUTENANT SIMMS: Good afternoon.
2	BOARD MEMBERS: Good afternoon.
3	LIEUTENANT SIMMS: Let me get my laptop here.
4	Okay. There we are. Okay. Good afternoon,
5	again, Board, DC. My name's William Simms. I'm the
6	Lieutenant assigned to Civil Rights and I'm here to
7	present an overview of our command.
8	Civil Rights is led by Commander Eric Ewing
9	and Captain John Certa and we have an audit manager,
10	Ms. Angie Harvey. I'll begin with some background.
11	Consent Decree issued on July 18th, 2003, the
12	U.S. District Court entered two consent decrees filed
13	by the Department of Justice, Conditions of Confinement
14	in DPD Holding Cells and Use of Force, Arrest and
15	Witness Detention.
16	Fast-forward eleven years, on August 25th,
17	2014, the Department entered into a transition
18	agreement with the Department of Justice, thereby
19	eliminating third-party oversight. This agreement is
20	expected to conclude March 2nd, 2016.
21	Our compliance team: The compliance team
22	ensures that compliance tasks are completed in a timely
23	manner. They coordinate compliance and new processes.
24	They facilitate the provision of data and documents to
25	DPD employees. They also assign compliance tasks to



L	DPD personnel and they're responsible for the
2	collection of information required to carry out the
3	provisions of the agreement and the release of
4	information to the DOJ.

2.2

Audits: Why do we audit? We audit for accountability, which is mandated by department policy, and to show that we are in compliance. We also audit to measure effectiveness, which is an indicator of the need to revise, create or retrain on our policies and procedures.

What we audit: We audit uses of force and injuries. Those include detainee injuries, allegations of use of force, uses of force and instances in which an officer draws a firearm and acquires a target.

We audit arrests, we look at probable cause and timely arraignment. We also audit employee performance and we look at things such as vehicle pursuits, citizens' complaints and stop and frisk.

We also conduct department-wide environmental audits. In those audits, we look at the work environment, accountability, compliance items and the morale of that command. We do that in order to see the things that are going well and those things that could be improved.

Are there any questions?



	Page 39
1	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioners, do you have any
2	questions for Lieutenant Simms?
3	Commissioner?
4	COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Through the Chair,
5	Lieutenant, can you remind us how we dealt with the
6	conditions of confinement? I think the taxpayers
7	actually would be pleased that we figure that out.
8	MS. BERNARD: Microphone, Mr. Mallet.
9	COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Go ahead.
10	LIEUTENANT SIMMS: Okay. Okay. Yes, we
11	dealt with the condition conditions of confinement
12	by actually well, let me preface it by saying that
13	we were in compliance prior to moving over to the State
14	housing our our detainees.
15	CHAIR CARTER: Detainees.
16	LIEUTENANT SIMMS: detainees at the
17	Michigan Department of Corrections. So that occurred
18	in September of 2013. But that
19	COMMISSIONER MALLETT: But prior to?
20	LIEUTENANT SIMMS: Prior to?
21	COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Prior to '13.
22	LIEUTENANT SIMMS: Prior to '13, we housed
23	the prisoners in our individual holding cells but we
24	made great leaps and bounds to make sure those holding



cells were suitable and up to code at that time.

25

Page 40 1 COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Oh, I see. Okay. But 2 with the transfer, though, to the Michigan Department of Corrections, though, we've got a much more clear 3 point of detain -- of where persons are detained and 4 5 the conditions are much more predictable in terms of the -- the maintenance and all of those kinds of things 6 as it relates to --7 8 LIEUTENANT SIMMS: Absolutely, absolutely, 9 yes. There was no -- no, push-back at all at that 10 point. 11 CHAIR CARTER: Any other questions, Commissioners? 12 13 Thank you, Lieutenant Simms. 14 LIEUTENANT SIMMS: Thank you. 15 CHAIR CARTER: All right. Under Standing 16 Committee Reports, we have the bylaws amendment. And 17 that was from the policy committee?

COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Yes, ma'am.

CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner Mallet?

COMMISSIONER MALLETT: So, Commissioners,

you've had this in front of you now for a number of

weeks. Occasionally, I think, particularly, on a day

like this, where everybody seems to be on their

absolutely either best behavior or asleep. It doesn't

seem like this particular policy would be required.



25

	rage 41
1	Nevertheless, I think that the it is the kind of
2	thing, Madam Chair, that it's a good reference point.
3	There's nothing about it particularly provocative. It
4	is a formal reminder that we're carrying out the
5	people's business here, that there are expectations,
6	particularly as it relates to the management of the
7	meeting by the Chairperson that, in this case, she be
8	allowed to manage this meeting as she sees fit, as long
9	as it meets the expectations that we are all bound by.
10	So I would ask that I offer this amendment
11	up, ask and move that it be adopted by the Board of
12	Police Commissioners.
13	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSHE: Support.
14	COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Support.
15	CHAIR CARTER: It's been moved and supported
16	that we approve the Bylaws Amendment. Is there any
17	discussion?
18	Those in favor?
19	BOARD MEMBERS: Aye.
20	COMMISSIONER BURTON: Those opposed?
21	The motion carries.
22	The bylaws will be amended to reflect. Thank
23	you.
24	COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Thank you.
25	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner



1	Mallet.
2	COMMISSIONER MALLETT: You're welcome.
3	CHAIR CARTER: Under New Business, we have a
4	Certificate of Recognition that Commissioner Bell is
5	going to read into the record.
6	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Madam Chair, it is a
7	privilege to honor to lift up today a Certificate of
8	Recognition to Gil Hill, the former President of the
9	Detroit City Council. And on behalf of the Board of
10	Police Commissioners, speaking for the citizens of
11	Detroit, award the Certificate of Recognition to
12	Gilbert, Gil Hill, former president of Detroit City
13	Council, retired Detroit Police Commander one of our
14	top homicide detectives in the history of Detroit, DPD
15	who gained recognition of a Beverly Hills Cop, but he
16	was a Detroit cop, in I, II and III. And you know the
17	role he played, Inspector Todd, Eddie Murphy, the
18	legendary Eddie Murphy as Axel Foley.
19	So I was going to make a request of his
20	family but we're going to have to lift up Gil Hill in
21	our prayers. As you well know, he was in ICU and he's
22	been undergoing some serious health challenges in
23	recent years and but a family member would be
24	presenting this to him. And he's one of those officer



hired in -- Commissioner Mallet, I think in the '50s,

25

	Page 43
1	'54, '55. He's one of those trailblazers that I looked
2	up to on this department and he was, really, one of the
3	top investigators, legendary in all sense of the
4	meaning, not standing Hollywood. I assumed that's why
5	they picked him, in terms of his representation as far
6	as investigation. He was involved with some
7	high-profile cases. And he was assisting to the
8	Atlanta child killing down in Atlanta; he went down
9	there.
10	But, basically, if there was a lesson plan,
11	in terms of how to investigate and how to interact with
12	people, Gil Hill had that people skills to initiate
13	that.
14	So I'm going to ask the Board to approve the
15	Certificate of Recognition, a modest token of his
16	career and his endeavors. And I know, when he was on
17	Council, he lobbied extensively on behalf of officers
18	in the City of Detroit in terms of that type of agenda.
19	So, once again, I just wanted you to pray for
20	him and his family and lift him up, in terms of Gil
21	Hill. So that's my motion.
22	COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Support.
23	VICE-CHAIR BELL: A second.
24	CHAIR CARTER: It's been moved and supported
25	that we adopt the Certificate of Recognition for Gil



	Page 44
1	Gilbert, Gil Hill, former City Council President. Is
2	there any discussion?
3	Those in favor?
4	BOARD MEMBERS: Aye.
5	CHAIR CARTER: Those opposed?
6	The motion carries.
7	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Thank you, Madam Chair.
8	COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Madam Chair.
9	CHAIR CARTER: Yes?
10	COMMISSIONER SANDERS: I'd like to discuss,
11	real quickly, to all the commissioners, this
12	information sheet that we have, if it's possible I
13	don't know, do we need to make a motion on it?
14	But can we have this e-mailed to us so we can
15	know what's in it before we get here? Because, of some
16	items that happened last week, I think that would be a
17	great idea to have it e-mailed to us.
18	CHAIR CARTER: Okay.
19	COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Do I need to make a
20	motion?
21	CHAIR CARTER: I don't think we need a
22	motion.
23	Ms. Attorney Bernard, can we make that
24	happen?
O.F.	MO DEDNADO No molelon



MS. BERNARD: No problem.

25

1	CHAIR CARTER: Okay.
2	MS. BERNARD: Thank you.
3	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you. You have the
4	equipment to do so?
5	MS. BERNARD: Yeah well, when we have it
6	as an e-mail, sometimes it's just like when I have
7	it as an e-mail, I'll be happy to send it. Or else, I
8	just won't put it in the package.
9	CHAIR CARTER: Okay. Thank you.
10	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Madam Chair, and I
11	concur, too, and it's not an issue about e-mailing it.
12	But also, too, for the sake of transparency and truth,
13	I'll leave everyone the last words of Marion Barry, the
14	former Mayor of Washington, DC, before he was arrested.
15	He says, "I've been set up, I've been set up." So we
16	don't want that to occur again, too, so we I concur
17	with that.
18	CHAIR CARTER: Okay.
19	MS. BERNARD: No problem.
20	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner
21	Sanders.
22	Is there any other old business?
23	Any old business?
24	Under announcements, our next meeting will be
25	Thursday, March 3rd, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. here at the



Page 46 1 Detroit Public Safety Headquarters, located at 2 1301 Third Street, the Michigan Room. Our next Board 3 of Police Commissioner Community meeting will be March 10th, 2016 at La Sed Senior Center, located at 4 7150 West Vernor Street in Detroit. 5 At this time, we'll take oral communications 6 7 from the audience. Please give your name and limit 8 your comments to two minutes, please. 9 MR. CONYERS: Good afternoon. 10 CHAIR CARTER: Good afternoon. 11 MR. CONYERS: Ian Conyers, concerned citizen. 12 I'm here today --13 MS. BERNARD: Your name, please, for the 14 record. 15 MR. CONYERS: Ian Conyers. 16 MS. BERNARD: Oh, Ian? 17 MR. CONYERS: Yes. 18 I'm here today just to briefly discuss with 19 the Detroit Police Commission the headline of the 20 Detroit News, which very concerning. This is in 21 regards to the shot-spotter equipment that's been used 2.2 in 48205, which is the Osborn neighborhood. It helps our brave women and men of law enforcement detect qun 23



shots and send patrols directly to it.

I wanted the Police Commission to be aware

24

25

2.2

that this technology is at risk of being taken away by
the vendor. They've been donating it to our city for
the past year. And, with those, they have brought a
presentation and a proposal directly to the Detroit
City Council, which is expanding on the pilot that
they've had in three square miles and saying 19 square
miles in which they've used Detroit crime data to say
may be the highest place of gun shooting across the
country.

I wanted to commend Chief Craig on the Green Light Program and also the incredible job they've been doing with Ceasefire that the Mayor mentioned. And I think it's exciting that we are starting to put the pieces together of what outstanding law enforcement looks like. The Mayor mentioned Boston and New York City. This is a piece of puzzle in both of those cities and in 88 other cities and I believe that it's a technology that can really be used to drive outcomes.

And our Detroit Police Department have been driven out shooting about 24 percent, along with the other operations they're using, in terms of the Ceasefire program and others. They just announced there's \$50 million in bonds that have been discovered. Many of those are going to the police. And I'm excited to get them some more technology and skill sets that

1	they'll be able to use to fight crime and fight violent
2	shooting crime across our city.
3	And I would ask that you look into how that
4	money, \$50 million, is being allocated and how we can
5	use that to advance our 21st Century policing
6	capabilities across the City.
7	And that is my two minutes. Thank you.
8	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you, sir.
9	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Madam?
10	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner Crawford.
11	COMMISSIONER MALLETT: Madam Chair.
12	Yes, sir, I'm very familiar with the
13	shot spotter. There's some research on it and it went
14	into Saginaw a few years ago. I I just want to say,
15	also, too, I read the information that was in the media
16	today and some of the previous information and it
17	talked about the funding for the allocation of money of
18	\$1.2 million and that's just to cover 16 square miles.
19	I love the technology. I embrace technology.
20	But, also, too, more importantly, I embrace the human
21	presence. And one point and I don't know how many
22	police officers we could hire for \$1.2 million for a
23	year but I do know, for a fact, having been a police
24	officer for almost 40 years, the human factor of of
25	a police officer being a shot spotter, in other words,

hearing the shots and responding.

And that's another issue about response time,
too. When you talk about it's more important to me
to have police officers on the street working in the
community, they hear shots, they can respond. I can't
even begin to tell you the countless times where I was
on patrol, and I know some of these other former police
officers can tell you that, too, here at the table,
whereas we were down the street, around the corner. I
even had an instance happen right in front of me. Not
only did I see but I heard. So the response time was
even less than a minute in some cases.

But, in terms of the allocation of monies and stuff, that is my concern. You know, I'd rather deal with the human factor of having a police officer there. And, even if you have shots fired and you don't have the officer to respond because you don't have the personnel — we need more police officers in this department and within the community of our city to make sure that the citizens are safe.

That is my only comment. But I do understand the technology and I embrace all technology. Sometimes I marvel in some of this technology. But the human factor, the human presence, to me, is more important. Thank you.



1	MR. CONYERS: May I respond?
2	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Madam Chair?
3	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner Moore.
4	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yes, ma'am. To Deputy
5	Chief Fitzgerald, what is the Department's position on
6	Shot Spotter?
7	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: I'll give you two
8	positions: My position is I love the technology, I
9	think it's amazing. You know, you can hear a gunshot
10	and you can get to an area to try to find out where it
11	is. Shot Spotter can put you within feet. We've had
12	it before it where we it put us right on top of,
13	unfortunately, a dead body; I mean, it is that
14	accurate.
15	Chief Craig's position is that he'd like to
16	see more working on it, he'd like to see it coupled
17	with cameras. Because we've looked at some other
18	systems that have it partnered with a camera where,
19	when the gunshot goes out, the camera spins and tilts
20	right to the incident itself. So, if he saw that, I
21	think he would be much more sold on the
22	COMMISSIONER MOORE: So it's still in play,
23	it's just not on the front burner, so to speak?
24	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Yeah. It's, like
25	this gentleman said, that the vendor gave it to us for



	rage 31
1	a year, to try it, to sample it. I think we're at
2	about 15 months now. And the vendor probably just
3	wants to know whether we're either doing it or they'll
4	take the technology back.
5	COMMISSIONER MOORE: So it's still in play;
6	is that
7	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: Yes.
8	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Okay. Thanks.
9	CHAIR CARTER: Questions for the
10	Commissioners?
1	COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, I
12	just want to say I support technology. I think it
13	would work here.
L 4	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you, sir.
15	MR. CONYERS: Thank you.
16	MR. BRYCE: To the honorable Board of Detroit
17	Police Commission, just let me just say good afternoon.
L8	BOARD MEMBERS: Good afternoon.
L 9	MR. BRYCE: My name is Marcellus Bryce. I'm
20	a lobbyist and government relations consultant with
21	Capital Strategic Group based out of Lansing, Michigan.
22	And I am here today because one of our clients is
23	Detroit-based White House Nightclub located at
24	625 Shelby.



25

This past Saturday, February the 20th, around

	Page 52
1	1:30 to 1:40 a.m., a sergeant by the name of Scott Hall
2	from the Third Precinct came down to the White House
3	Night Club and I actually happened to be there to
4	witness this and he made allegations that the White
5	House liquor license was not valid. And he removed the
6	liquor license from the building and then began to
7	escort all of the patrons of this business out and,
8	effectively, shut down the club for the rest of the
9	evening well, for the rest of the morning.
10	The next day I got on the phone, I called
11	Commander Todd Bettison of the Detroit Police
12	Department who advised me to speak to Deputy Chief
13	Renee Hall. I spoke to Deputy Chief Renee Hall. She
14	investigated the matter for me and she returned with
15	the findings that the MLCC, Michigan Liquor Control
16	Commission, had sent communication to Detroit Police
17	Department to shut down this this nightclub, the
18	White House. And that they were
19	She also told me that Sergeant Lightfoot
20	ordered Sergeant Hall to to go out and do the liquor
21	inspection and to shut the club down, and that Monday
22	morning we could go down and see the communication from
23	the MLCC.
24	Went down Tuesday morning. There was no such



25

communication from the MLCC. The Detroit Police

2.2

Department has not been able	to show me any proof that
the MLCC ordered such an orde	r. Contacted the MLCC;
they advised me that it was n	o such order ever given.

As of today, I have not been able to see any documentation from the Detroit Police Department that even reflects that the liquor license was -- was taken away. The Sergeant at hand, Sergeant Scott Hall, never wrote a ticket. There was never a police report done on it. There is no paperwork whatsoever that shows that Detroit Police ever went into this night -- this establishment and took away their liquor license.

And so I'm really here today because I believe that this is an abuse of power and I would like to have this matter furthermore investigated by your honorable body.

Sergeant Hall told me, the night of, that the reason why he was taking a liquor license was because the liquor license was non -- that it was not an official copy of the liquor license, that it was a printed copy. That, later, after it was examined by other police officers in the department, was -- turned out to be false as well.

There's been a lot of allegations on behalf of my client who has suffered tremendously. He has a loss of business, a loss of reputation. That night



	Page 54
1	alone until this incident, we can say that we know for
2	a fact he lost over \$18,000 plus in revenue.
3	CHAIR CARTER: Mr. Bryce.
4	MR. BRYCE: Yes?
5	CHAIR CARTER: Have you already filed a
6	complaint or has your client?
7	MR. BRYCE: We have filed a complaint with
8	the IG's office. We have also filed a complaint with
9	Internal Affairs. We're now filing a complaint here
10	and we also plan to file a lawsuit with the against
11	the City of Detroit.
12	CHAIR CARTER: Chief Investigator Drake, you
13	have received a complaint.
14	CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Yes.
15	CHAIR CARTER: Okay. Please follow up with
16	Mr. Bryce, please.
17	Thank you.
18	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Pardon me. Through
19	the Chair, this establishment is, you said, Shelby?
20	MR. BRYCE: Yes, it's located at 625 Shelby
21	in Detroit.
22	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Is it downtown?
23	Is that near Washington?
24	MR. BRYCE: Yes.
25	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Okay. White House?



1	MR. BRYCE: Yes.
2	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Liquor the
3	President hadn't been there, has he?
4	White House. Okay. Yes, sir. All right.
5	Thank you.
6	MR. BRYCE: All right. Thank you.
7	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you.
8	Any other comments or communications?
9	MS. SMITH: Bernice Smith, public relations
10	with MCS Multi Media.
11	Good afternoon Chief. Good seeing you.
12	DEPUTY CHIEF FITZGERALD: You, too.
13	MS. SMITH: Commissioners.
14	Last week, we had a discussion, which I was
15	highly upset about, mentioning qualifications of the
16	Chief. And then, like what would we say when the
17	women's circle I'm not going to tell who said it.
18	Now, I think you have a position here that needs to be
19	respected and are you you ready?
20	CHAIR CARTER: Yes, ma'am.
21	MS. SMITH: All right.
22	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Yes, ma'am.
23	MS. SMITH: I want all of you to hear it.
24	Because I'm very disappointed with the Commission
25	because of the fact that that was said in public to the



1	Chief. It was embarrassment. If it wasn't to him, it
2	was an embarrassment to me to tell that he wasn't
3	qualified for certain rules and regulations that the
4	Police Chief have.

2.2

In the meantime, you have other things that I -- I feel as though you need to address. And, again, that particular person who said it, I think they should go to the Chief and have a one-on-one talk with him instead of making it public because that's -- that wasn't necessary.

Page 56

The next thing, you're disrespecting your members here. You have certain rules and regulations that are supposed to be abided by and, when your members want to say something, you cut them off and I think that's disrespectful.

Also, I know in the beginning how the election went. So, therefore, I feel as though you should do your job and not have a little click together where you're going to exclude certain members and not let them be notified when you have meetings. These things is not to be tolerated because you're adults here and I feel as though whatever you have against each other, you should be man or woman enough to come and talk with each other in a decent way and respect each other. I was taught to be respectful.



	Page 5/
1	So, with me having the position that I have
2	now, I will be watching you and I will see how you're
3	going to work with each other in the future. You had
4	one member that's gone, I miss him like hell.
5	In the meantime, let's hope that the one who
6	takes his place will do a good job, as far as taking
7	care of the notes of this commission. I thank you for
8	your time.
9	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Madam Chair.
10	CHAIR CARTER: Commissioner Crawford?
11	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.
12	With all due respect, Ms. Smith, I love and
13	respect you and I welcome the oversight over the
14	oversight. However, for, I guess, clarity and truth
15	here, that, what occurred last week, there's a little
16	bit more to it and we're moving on
17	MS. SMITH: All right.
18	VICE-CHAIR BELL: as we stated. Also, to
19	the the bylaws were amended so we're all okay with
20	that and
21	MS. SMITH: I'm glad to hear it.
22	VICE-CHAIR BELL: And, yeah, I just want you
23	to know and the public to know and everybody
24	MS. SMITH: Because I don't want to be
25	hearing about it and not have to write about it.



1	I thank you, again.
2	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Oh, you can write
3	about it, ma'am.
4	MS. SMITH: All right.
5	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: We welcome
6	MS. SMITH: I'm just telling you
7	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am.
8	MS. SMITH: you're on the spotlight. All
9	right? All of you. You have certain members here
10	that's doing their jobs and I admire them for it but
11	then you have certain members that have a little click
12	together.
13	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Madam Chair.
14	MS. SMITH: And that's not tolerated and
15	shouldn't be tolerated.
16	All right? I thank you.
17	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Madam Chair?
18	CHAIR CARTER: Yes, sir.
19	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Thank you.
20	MS. SMITH: You have something to say, Bell?
21	VICE-CHAIR BELL: I have the mic. I just
22	want to say this: Mother Bernice, I'm not going to be
23	admonished by you or by anyone else
24	MS. SMITH: Wait a minute. If the foot
25	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Excuse me.



1	MS. SMITH: I'm going to listen to you.
2	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Your time is up. I'm not
3	speaking to you.
4	MS. SMITH: All right. I can sit down?
5	VICE-CHAIR BELL: Yes, ma'am.
6	MS. SMITH: All right. I'll see you after
7	the meeting.
8	VICE-CHAIR BELL: I just want to say that the
9	matter was not brought up by this body here. The Chief
10	brought the matter up. There was no public forum. But
11	the matter's been resolved with the Chief and the
12	person involved, too.
13	And the other issue, there is no place for
14	dialogue of that nature by Mother Bernice. I have a
15	great deal of respect. But, internally, we have
16	concerns but it's not to be elected by an individual
17	that's coming before this body here; I think that's
18	disrespectful. And I will speak to it every time, in
19	terms of that type of dialogue; that is not your place.
20	We are a public body and we function in a
21	certain manner. There are disagreements sometime but
22	there is no click. There is a unified Board of Police
23	Commission and we are today addressing those concerns.
24	But you do not have everybody on the same page at all
25	times that's why they have a right to express their



1	opinions, et cetera, et cetera.
2	I'm not going to sit here and allow anyone to
3	come before me to have that type of dialogue, in terms
4	of "click" and all that because we have issues and
5	concerns. Elections are elections; that's politics of
6	anybody. So I just want to say that.
7	And to you and anyone else that, all due
8	respect, there's a time and place. If you've got some
9	concern, maybe you need to take it on the side and have
10	a side bar.
11	MS. SMITH: I'll see you. I'll see you.
12	VICE-CHAIR BELL: And each Commissioner here
13	know their rights and their privilege. They are all
14	more than capable of speaking and handling their
15	business and speaking to those concerns. And I don't
16	have to speak for them. So I just want to say that, in
17	terms of a public discussion. Thank you.
18	CHAIR CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner Bell.
19	Any other comments?
20	COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair, I
21	feel like we, as a body, we shouldn't cut off our
22	seniors when they're coming before us and speaking
23	before the Board or with the Board. We should have
24	more respect and more class, especially when it comes



to serving the citizens of Detroit and, also, to our

25

	Page 61
1	seniors. I would like it for Mother Bernice to come
2	back up here and finish her discussion, whatever she
3	CHAIR CARTER: She had her two minutes.
4	MS. SMITH: That's all right. I'll get them.
5	Don't worry about it. Thank you.
6	CHAIR CARTER: Anything else; any other
7	comments, communications?
8	Any other comments?
9	Is there a motion for adjournment?
10	COMMISSIONER MOORE: So move.
11	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: So move.
12	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Support.
13	CHAIR CARTER: It's been moved and supported
14	that we adjourn. Those in favor?
15	BOARD MEMBERS: Aye.
16	CHAIR CARTER: Those opposed?
17	Meeting is adjourned. Thank you all for
18	coming. Have a great day.
19	(Meeting was concluded at 4:08 p.m.)
20	* * * *
21	
22	
23	
24	



25

Page 62

1	CERTIFICATE
2	
3	I, Mona Storm, do hereby certify that I hav
4	recorded stenographically the proceedings had and
5	testimony taken in the meeting, at the time and place
6	hereinbefore set forth, and I do further certify that
7	the foregoing transcript, consisting of (62) pages, i
8	a true and correct transcript of my said stenographic
9	notes.
10	A Baug
11	Date - Ware Son Tuo 1900
12	Mona Storm
13	CSR-4460
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



A	admire 58:10	Americans 29:21	7:13 31:24
a.m 24:16,17	admonished 58:23	Angie 37:10	assisting $11:7$
52:1	adopt 43:25	Animal 27:14,23	43:7
Abdullah 2:19	adopted 41:11	announced 47:22	Association 3:13
10:6	adults 56:21	announcements	25:15 , 25
abided 56:13	advance 48:5	3:21 45:24	assumed 43:4
able 10:23 20:5	advised 52:12	annual 17:16	asthma 28:6,8
48:1 53:1,4	53:3	20:5	Atlanta 43:8,8
Abraham 29:14	advisories 20:17	anomaly 20:9,12	attack 26:6 28:6
absolutely 10:10	Affairs 17:5,15	answer 31:22	28:8,8
16:18 40:8,8	18:7,12 54:9	Anthony 7:10	attend 8:18,19
40:24	African-American	anybody 60:6	26:3
abuse 53:13	29:10 31:1,2,7	anyway 16:2	attended 9:4
	32:1	Apart 30:16	21:14 25:16
AC 26:2 accident 4:13	African-Ameri	appeal 13:21,22	attending 10:7
	30:22 31:15	13:24 14:3,25	Attorney 2:2
24:11	afternoon 4:4	15:3	5:19 7:18 9:13
accolades 28:20	9:21,23 37:1,2	applaud 30:23	44:23
accommodating	37:4 46:9,10	applications	audience 3:22
11:6	51:17,18 55:11	9:11	46:7
accommodation	agenda 3:7 7:20	appointed 2:9,10	audit 37:9 38:5
16:15	7:21,25 8:16	2:11,12 31:24	38:5,7,11,11
accomplishments	43:18	31:25 35:12	38:15,16
29:21 31:7	ago 15:2,2 18:1	appreciate 5:6	audits 38:5,20
accountability	34:2 48:14	11:6 25:20	38:20
38:6,21	agree 20:10	26:17 27:11	August 37:16
accurate 50:14	agreement 37:18	30:17 32:25	available 21:8
achievements	37:19 38:3	34:25	await 17:13,14
30:7	ahead 4:17 39:9	Appreciation	award 42:11
acknowledged 9:1	airmen 30:12	3:17	aware 20:11
10:8	Alan 2:17 7:14	Approval 3:7,8	46:25
acknowledging	alert 20:2	approve 7:21 8:6	awareness 30:17
10:1	alive 36:21,22	8:10 41:16	31:9,12
acquires 38:14	allegations	43:14	Axel 42:18
ACTION 3:3	11:23 12:1,3	approving 9:11	Aye 8:1,13 41:19
actions 17:17	12:13,17 38:12	approving 5.11 approximately	44:4 61:15
actual 27:17	52:4 53:23	35:11	14.4 01.15
additional 16:9	alleged 11:18	area 29:21 50:10	В
address 8:19	allocated 48:4	areas 11:23 12:7	back 7:4 15:1
19:12 56:6	allocation 48:17	Armed 35:14	18:11,11 26:20
addressing 59:23	49:13	arraignment	28:22 36:2,7
adequate 13:9	allow 60:2	38:16	51:4 61:2
adjourn 61:14	allowed 41:8	Arrest 37:14	back-to-back
adjourned 61:17	allowed 41.0	arrested 45:14	24:7
<pre>adjournment 3:23</pre>	amazing 50:9	arrests 38:15	background 34:18
61:9	Amen 5:16	asked 6:16 32:9	34:24 37:10
administration	amended 41:22	asleep 40:24	bad 24:24
12:24 17:7		_	
Administrative	57:19	aspects 30:22	bang-up 24:21
2:22 7:13	amendment 40:16	assessment 25:2	Bannum 36:9
administratively	41:10,16	assign 37:25	bar 60:10
35:25	American 3:13	assigned 37:6	barrier 21:17,24
	25:15,25	Assistant 2:22	Barry 45:13
	1	1	•

based 51:21 basically 43:10 bedtime 29:5 began 29:10 52:6 beginning 56:16 behalf 3:12 42:9 43:17 53:23 behavior 40:24 believe 17:4 36:13,17 47:17
behavior 40:24 believe 17:4 36:13,17 47:17 53:13 Bell 2:4 4:10,16 4:18 5:17,22 5:23 6:2 20:23 20:24,25 21:4 21:10 22:6,11 22:16 25:11,13 26:24 33:19,22 34:21 42:4,6 43:23 44:7 55:22 57:18,22 58:13,17,19,20 58:21,25 59:2 59:5,8 60:12
60:18 belt 26:21 27:1 27:1,2 Bernard 2:2 5:19 5:20,24 6:1,3 6:5,7,9,11,13 6:15,25 7:7,9 7:18 25:22 39:8 44:23,25 45:2,5,19 46:13,16
Bernard's 9:13 Bernice 2:25 55:9 58:22 59:14 61:1 best 30:20 31:6 36:12,12 40:24 better 28:7 30:9 Bettison 52:11 Beverly 42:15 Bicentennial 29:17 big 35:2
<pre>biggest 26:10 bilingual 21:12 22:15 birthdates 29:13 Bishop 6:16</pre>

ble 5: ble blo blu boa 4:	::2 ck ::2 ::2 ::5 ::6 ::6 ::6 ::6 ::6 ::6 ::6 ::6 ::6	4 3: 4 , 5 1, 8 4, 9 0: ed in 7 in ed 31 1:	5121,2,12,14 g 3 g 1:1,:	749,8417596:46 6 3 28	: :2, 0, 2::3: 22	121313,133 02501 : 8	68 , , 911946 5 , : 1 25 :	:82,:3,:: 5 11 :	,521 248 : 68	8 0 4
10 14 16 34 41 43 46	13 :9 ::1 ::1 ::1 ::2 ::2	,1 2 8 1, 4 2	1 0 3 1 4 51 6	: 3794:0	7 1 : : 1 :	6224462	1:5,2	5 : 1	9 8 2	3
Boa:	.⊥ rd	ാ ' s	1	1	:	2				
Boa. 16 bod. 26 53 59 bon. boo.	u.s k 3	1:	•	_	\cup				7	
BOP Bos bot bou bra bra bri 25	C3 to: to: nd: nd: ve w5 ef	:9 m 3 41 s 3 46 :1	7 4 : 9 : 3	: 9 : 2	1 8 2 3					
bri			3	3	:	2	3			

<pre>bringing 27:11</pre>
27:22
Brooks 2:12 5:24
5:25 32:15,17 32:20 33:2
34:1
brought 27:16
17.3 50.0 10
Brown 2:22 7:12 23:2,13,17,19 Bryce 2:24 51:16 51:19,19 54:3 54:4,7,16,20 54:24 55:1,6
23:2,13,17,19
Bryce 2:24 51:16
51:19,19 54:3
54:4,7,16,20
54:24 55:1,6
build-out 10:18 10:19
building 52:6
Bully 36:10
Bully-Cummings
31:23
Bureau 6:24
burner 50:23
Burton 2:7 6:1
41:20 51:11
60:20
business 3:20
27:15 36:1 41:5 42:3
45:22,23 52:7
53:25 60:15
bylaws 3.19
40:16 41:16,22
57 : 19
C
C30:23 62:1,1 call 3:4 5:19
14:13,16 17:16
called 29:9
52:10
camera 50:18,19
cameras 50:17
cams 15:8
candy 31:21
capabilities

care 5/: career 3 43:16 Carmen 2	35:2 23:3
Carolyn 10:4	
carries 41:21	44:6
4:11 5 6:22 7 8:2,9, 13:11, 20:21, 23:21, 25:9,1 27:3 2 8:17 32:3 3 33:21 39:1,1 40:15, 41:25 43:24 44:18, 45:3,9 46:10 50:3 5 54:3,5 55:7,2 58:18 61:3,6 case13: 21:25 caseload	9 41:4 2:3 4:4,6 3:17 6:18 3:6,18,24 14 10:10 14 14:22 24 22:25 25 24:3 2 26:25 28:4,11 29:15 33:5,8,13 36:20,22 5 40:11 19 41:15 42:3 44:5,9 21 45:1 9,18,20 48:8,10 61:9,14 6,12,15 60:18 60:18 61:9,14 61:17 61:17 61:17 61:17 61:19
Catholi	c 24:17

34:16 35:1

46:18

48:6

capable 60:14
Capital 51:21
Captain 2:17,18
 3:14 7:4,4
 19:5 28:12,16

28:18 32:3,5,8

cause 38:15 Ceasefire 47:12
47:22
<pre>celebrate 29:23 Celebrating</pre>
29:25 30:4
31:8,13
Celia 2:20 25:20
cells 37:14 39:23,25
Center 46:4
Century 48:5
Certa 37:9
certain 26:13,14 56:3,12,19
58:9,11 59:21
certainly $16:13$
18:8
Certificate 3:17 42:4.7.11
42:4,7,11 43:15,25
certify 62:3,6
cetera 60:1,1
Chair 4:4,6,11 5:17 6:18,22
7:6,18,24 8:2
8:9,14 10:10
13:11,13,14 14:22,23 20:21
20:23,24 22:23
22:25 23:21,25
24:3,5 25:9,11
25:12 26:25 27:3,6 28:3,4
28:11,17 32:3
32:6 33:4,5,19
33:21 36:20,22
39:1,4,15
40:11,15,19 41:2,15,25
42:3,6 43:24
44:5,7,8,9,18
44:21 45:1,3,9 45:10,18,20
46:10 48:8,10
48:11 50:2,3
51:9,11,14 54:3,5,12,15 54:19 55:7,20
54:3,5,12,15 54:19 55:7,20
54:3,5,12,15 54:19 55:7,20 57:9,10 58:13
58:17,18 60:18
60:20 61:3,6

(1.12.16	
61:13,16 chairperson 2:3	
3:10 6:15 7:9	
7:17 41:7 Chairperson's	
8:16	
Chairwoman 5:21 challenges 42:22	
Chambers 2:18	
7:4 19:5	
chance 30:21	
chappa 35:14 charge 35:19	
7:4 19:5 chance 30:21 Chappa 35:14 charge 35:19 Charles 2:14	
6:21 32:23 Cheryl 2:16	
Chief 2:13,14,16	
2:16,20 3:12	
3:13 4:23 6:20 6:20,22,23,24	
7:3,12 9:8,19	
9:21,24,25	
10:4,6,12 11:13 12:22	
13:12,15,18,21	
13:23 14:15,20	
14:25 16:4,18 16:23 17:2,6,9	
17:11,20,24	
18:3,5,13,16 18:19,21,23,25	
18:19,21,23,25	
19:18 20:14,19	
21:1,3,9 22:3	
19:3,8,11,17 19:18 20:14,19 21:1,3,9 22:3 22:7,12,17 23:9,12,24	
24:1,2,4,6	
25:8,10,14,19 26:3 27:2,4,7	
26:3 27:2,4,7 27:10,13,21	
28:2,7 31:20 31:24 32:1	
31:24 32:1	
36:8,9,10 47:10 50:5,7	
50:15,24 51:7	
52:12,13 54:12 54:14 55:11,12	
54:14 55:11,12 55:16 56:1,4,8	
59:9,11	
<pre>chiefs 35:25 child 32:17 43:8</pre>	
child 32:17 43:8 childhood 28:23	
_	

children 28:21
28:21 29:4
30:12 32:10
children's 32:24
CI 3:11
circle 55:17
cities 15:9,12
47:17,17
citizen 13:16 14:3,13 46:11
14:3,13 46:11
citizens 5:2
14:4 22:21
31:10 42:10 49:20 60:25
49:20 60:25
citizens' 38:18 city 4:24 5:7,8 5:9 8:19,22
5.9 8.19 22
20.17 27.16
20:17 27:16 35:21 36:2,17
42:9,12 43:18
44:1 47:2,5,16
48:2,6 49:19
54:11
Civil 3:15 36:25
37:6 , 8
clarity 57:14
class 60:24
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22</pre>
<pre>class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13</pre>
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8 52:21
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8 52:21 code 39:25
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8 52:21 code 39:25 coincided 29:12
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8 52:21 code 39:25 coincided 29:12 colder 19:21
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8 52:21 code 39:25 coincided 29:12 colder 19:21 collection 38:2
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8 52:21 code 39:25 coincided 29:12 colder 19:21 collection 38:2 collective 5:10
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8 52:21 code 39:25 coincided 29:12 colder 19:21 collection 38:2 collective 5:10 5:14 31:16
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8 52:21 code 39:25 coincided 29:12 colder 19:21 collection 38:2 collective 5:10 5:14 31:16 college 34:7 combination 28:8
class 60:24 clean 35:12 clear 40:3 clearly 20:6 click 56:18 58:11 59:22 60:4 client 53:24 54:6 clients 51:22 close 13:2 32:1 closed 11:14,15 12:2,8,13 closure 10:16 club 34:3 52:3,8 52:21 code 39:25 coincided 29:12 colder 19:21 collection 38:2 collective 5:10 5:14 31:16 college 34:7

11:1 28:13

c	3 6 or	ne	≥:	s	6	0	:	2	4					
C	or 9	n:	Lı a	nç	3	5	:	1	0		8	:	2	5
	1 3 5 6	7 5 9	: :	1 2 1	5 3 7		2	6	:	2	3 1	,	1	3
c	or 3	nr	n	aı	n		3	7	:	7				
C	1 3 5	nr 8 7	n:	1 8	n	,	1	6	,	1	: 8	1	1	
C	or or	nr nr	na na	a 1	no	נכ	ra	at	te	9	2	:	2:	3
C	or 4	nr 7	ne :	eı 1	0	£	2	1	:	1				
C	or 4	nr 9	ne :	اد 2	ո 1									
C	3 6 or	nr 2	ne :	21 4 1	n t	ቲ 4	s 6	2:1	88	:	1 5	2 5 8	:	8
C	or	nr	n:	i:	5: -	3.	Ĺ)]	ı.	2	:	2	1	
	4 4 5 5	: 6 2 7	7 :::	2 1 7	5 5 6	: 5	1 5 5 9	2 1 5 :	: 2	4 1 2 3	6 7 4	:	1	9
C	OI	nr	n:	i	S	3	Ĺ	21	16	21	r			5
	_	:	О	,	/	,	Ö		C	:	\perp	/		
	6 7 1 1	: 3 4	1 2 ::	0 2 1 2 2	,,322	1 2 ,	: 2 3 1 1 2	4 4 4 3	, 1 8 , :	6 4 : 1 1	, 7526	8	8 1 1 3	9
	671111111 1111	::3346778	1 2 ::	0212214292122112412	,,322	1 2 ,	: 2 3 1 1 2	4 4 4 3	, 1 8 , :	6 4 : 1 1	, 7526	8	8 1 1 3	9



20.2 / 0 10 21
39:3,4,9,19,21 40:1,18,19,20
41:13,14,20,24
41:25 42:2,4
42:25 43:22
44:8,10,19
45:10,20 46:3
48:9,10,11
50:2,3,4,22
51:5,8,11 51:18 22 25
55:2 57:9.10
57:11 58:2,5,7
48:9,10,11 50:2,3,4,22 51:5,8,11 54:18,22,25 55:2 57:9,10 57:11 58:2,5,7 60:12,18,20
01:10,11,12
commissioners
1:1 2:1 7:19 8:4 13:11
15:19,24 17:14
20:22 25:10
39:1 40:12,20
41:12 42:10
44:11 51:10
55:13
Commissioners' 4:5
4 · J
committee 3:18
committee 3:18 14:5 40:16,17
14:5 40:16,17 communication
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complain 13:20 complaint 13:16
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complain 13:20 complaint 13:16 14:4,5 54:6,7
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complain 13:20 complaint 13:16 14:4,5 54:6,7 54:8,9,13
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complain 13:20 complaint 13:16 14:4,5 54:6,7 54:8,9,13 complaints 11:10
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complaint 13:16 14:4,5 54:6,7 54:8,9,13 complaints 11:10 11:19 12:14
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complaint 13:20 complaint 13:16 14:4,5 54:6,7 54:8,9,13 complaints 11:10 11:19 12:14 15:4,6,9 38:18
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complaint 13:20 complaint 13:16 14:4,5 54:6,7 54:8,9,13 complaints 11:10 11:19 12:14 15:4,6,9 38:18 completed 37:22 completes 7:16
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complaint 13:16 14:4,5 54:6,7 54:8,9,13 complaints 11:10 11:19 12:14 15:4,6,9 38:18 completed 37:22 compliance 37:21
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complaint 13:20 complaint 13:16 14:4,5 54:6,7 54:8,9,13 complaints 11:10 11:19 12:14 15:4,6,9 38:18 completed 37:22 compliance 37:21 37:21,22,23,25
14:5 40:16,17 communication 3:22 52:16,22 52:25 communications 46:6 55:8 61:7 community 21:6 21:11,20 22:10 22:19 30:1 36:2 46:3 49:5 49:19 companies 9:12 complaint 13:16 14:4,5 54:6,7 54:8,9,13 complaints 11:10 11:19 12:14 15:4,6,9 38:18 completed 37:22 compliance 37:21

11.00
concern 11:23
12:8 21:22
49:14 60:9
concerned 46:11
concerning 46:20
concerns 59:16
59:23 60:5,15
conclude 37:20
concluded 61:19
concludes 9:16
concur 45:11,16
condition 39:11
conditions 37:13
39:6,11 40:5
conducive 22:18
conduct 38:19
<pre>conducting 7:13</pre>
conference 16:12
confinement
37:13 39:6,11
Conrad 2:9 6:7
consciousness
31:16
consensus 21:16
<pre>consent 37:11,12</pre>
<pre>consider 33:12</pre>
consisted 26:5
consistent 19:14
consistently
20:3
consisting 62:7
consultant 51:20
contact 14:13
Contacted 53:2
Contemplating
31:16
continue 15:20
Control 27:14,23
52:15
convened 9:2
conversation
22:5
conveyed 33:23
Conyers 2:24
46:9,11,11,15
46:15,17 50:1
51:15
cooler 19:21
coordinate 37:23
cop 42:15,16
copy 53:19,20
corner 49:9
COLLIGE 19.9

correct 62 Correction 39:17 40 Council 27 42:9,13 44:1 47: count 11:10 countless country 29 31:15 47 couple 11:11 18:10 21 coupled 50 courses 34	18 :3 :16 43:17 5 0 49:6 :19 :9 3 15:1 :14 :16 :7
court 7:15 37:12 cover 48:16 Covert 35: Craig 4:23 Craig's 50 Crawford 2 6:4 7:22 14:23 16 16:25 17 17:10,13 18:4,9,1 18:20,24 19:7,9,1 20:13,15 27:12,20 33:4,5,6 36:20,21 48:9,10 54:22,25 57:9,10, 58:2,5,7 create 38: creation 2 credited 2 crew 35:12 crime 24:24 48:1,2	8 7 47:10 :15 :5 6:3 14:22 :17,19 :4,8 ,23,25 5,17 19:2 6 27:5 ,17 45:10 54:18 55:2 11 61:11 9 :9 9:15 9:15
CSR-4460 65 Culture 30 current 10 currently: 11:2 16: custody 35 cut 56:14	:21 :13 10:21 7 :6

data 16:21 37:24 47:7 **date** 11:12 62:11 **dates** 32:21 **Davis** 31:4 Davis-Drake 2:16 7:11 9:25 day 4:20 25:1 28:22 40:22 52:10 61:18 days 10:17 **DC** 37:5 45:14 **DEA** 35:3,8 **dead** 50:13 **deal** 49:14 59:15 **dealt** 39:5,11 **debated** 34:4 decent 56:24 decision 14:8 decisions 9:15 decrease 19:22 decreased 15:9 15:10,11 19:15 **Decree** 37:11 **decrees** 37:12 definitely 15:6 demeanor 11:24 12:9,10 department 2:15 4:22 9:16 10:22 15:7 24:21 36:25 37:13,17,18 38:6 39:17 40:2 43:2 47:19 49:19 52:12,17 53:1 53:5,21 Department's 50:5 department-wide 38:19 **Deputy** 2:14,20 3:13 6:20,20 6:23 7:3 9:8 24:1,2,4 25:10 25:13,19 27:2 27:4,10,13,21 28:2,7 50:4,7 50:24 51:7 52:12,13 55:12 **Derek** 2:11

21:3,9 22:3,7

22:12,17 23:9

23:12,24 54:12

Derrick 6:11 deserve 30:3 detailed 13:24 14:10
detain 40:4 detained 40:4 detainee 38:12 detainees 39:14 39:15,16
detect 46:23 Detective 6:24 detectives 42:14 Detention 37:15 determine 14:6 Detroit 1:4,6
4:1,24 8:22 15:7 20:17 22:22 24:20 34:5 42:9,11
43:18 46:1,5 46:19,20 47:4 47:7,19 51:16 52:11,16,25 53:5,10 54:11 54:21 60:25
5/1 + 7/1 6/1 + 7/5
Detroit-based
Detroit-based 51:23
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16 different 30:22
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16 different 30:22 directed 27:24
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16 different 30:22
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16 different 30:22 directed 27:24 directly 46:24 47:4 Director 4:12
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16 different 30:22 directed 27:24 directly 46:24 47:4 Director 4:12 24:11,15 27:19
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16 different 30:22 directed 27:24 directly 46:24 47:4 Director 4:12 24:11,15 27:19 disagreements
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16 different 30:22 directed 27:24 directly 46:24 47:4 Director 4:12 24:11,15 27:19
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16 different 30:22 directed 27:24 directly 46:24 47:4 Director 4:12 24:11,15 27:19 disagreements 59:21 disappointed 55:24
Detroit-based 51:23 developed 35:14 Dewaelshe 2:10 6:5,6 7:23 8:8 22:23 23:1,11 23:15,20 41:13 Dewaelshe's 21:22 dialogue 22:2 59:14,19 60:3 died 30:16 different 30:22 directed 27:24 directly 46:24 47:4 Director 4:12 24:11,15 27:19 disagreements 59:21 disappointed

discipline 17:15

10 10		
17:17	. 47.00	
discovered discuss 4		
46:18	4.10	
discussion	on 8:11	
41:17 4		
55:14 6		
61 : 2		
disease 2	6:8	
disrespe		
56:15 5		
disrespe	cting	
56:11	1 E C 7	
<pre>Dist 2:3, 2:8</pre>	4,5,6,7	
District	37.12	
disturbi		
15:12	-	
diverse 3	1:18	
divorced		
DMC 26:22		
doctors 2		
documenta	ation	
53:5 documente	ad 15.0	
documents		
doing 21:	1 24:21	
26:12 2	8:7	
47:12 5	1:3	
58:10		
DOJ 38:4		
donating		
door 36:9		
doubt 19:		
Douglass downtown		
54:22	23:3	
DPD 25:24	35:23	
37:14,2	5 38:1	
12.11		
Dr 27:18 Drake 3:1 9:21,24 13:12,1 13:23 1	33:8,13	
Drake 3:1	1 9:19	
9:21,24	10:12	
13:12,1	5,18,21	
13:23 I	4:15,20	
14:ZD 1	6:4,18 7:2,6,9	
17:11,2	0 24	
18:3.5.	13,16	
18:3,5, 18:19,2	1,25	
19:3,8,	11,17	
20:14,1	9 21:1	

54:14
draws 31:17
38:14
drive 24:13,19
47:18
driven 47:20
due 57:12 60:7
Duties 3:6
E
E 2:4,7 5:22 6:1
62:1,1
e-mail 15:1 45:6
45:7
e-mailed 44:14
44:17
e-mailing 45:11
earlier 9:7
24:10
Eddie 42:17,18
Edgar 6:16
Edmondson 27:8
effectively 52:8
effectiveness
38:8
effects 26:11
effort 16:24
eight 20:7
either 10:15
40:24 51:3
El-Sayed 27:18
elected 59:16
election 56:17
elections 60:5,5
<pre>elementary 34:2</pre>
elevator 25:6
eleven 37:16
eliminating
37:19
Elizabeth 2:12
5:24
Ella 31:23 36:10
36:10
embarrassment
56:1,2
embedded 34:9
embrace 48:19,20
49:22
employee 38:16

employees 37:25 endeavor 29:22 endeavors 43:16 endured 30:4 enforcement 46:23 47:14 engagements 24:7 English 23:16 **enjoy** 30:18 enjoyed 32:13,18 ensures 37:22 entered 37:12,17 **entire** 12:20 13:1 environment 34:13 38:21 environmental 38:19 equality 30:4 equipment 45:4 46:21 Eric 37:8 escort 52:7 especially 60:24 establishment 53:11 54:19 **et** 60:1,1 **Eva** 2:10 6:5 evening 52:9 **event** 29:10 **events** 30:13 everybody 36:16 40:23 57:23 59:24 **Ewing** 37:8 examined 53:20 **example** 30:10 excellent 34:11 excited 25:5 47:24 exciting 47:13 **exclude** 56:19 **Excuse** 58:25 excused 6:16 7:10,10 exonerated 12:6 expanded 29:18 expanding 47:5 expectations 41:5,9 **expected** 37:20 experience 34:15

34:22 **express** 59:25 extensively 43:17 **eye** 20:1,9,11 **eyes** 30:25

F **F** 62:1 facilitate 37:24 **fact** 13:24 18:1 48:23 54:2 55:25 **factor** 48:24 49:15,24 **false** 53:22

familiar 48:12 family 42:20,23 43:20

far 21:12 33:25 43:5 57:6 **FAST** 35:15

Fast-forward

37:16

father 4:19,24 5:5 33:12 **favor** 7:25 8:12

41:18 44:3 61:14

February 1:3 3:7 3:8 4:2 7:20 8:5,10 10:14

29:2,12 51:25

federal 27:9 feel 56:6,17,22

60:21 **feet** 50:11

fellowship 5:6 **felt** 9:4

female 30:24 31:2,20,24

32:1 35:11 **females** 35:10

fight 48:1,1 figure 39:7

file 14:6 54:10

filed 11:15,17 11:22 37:12

54:5,7,8

filing 54:9 filled 25:3

final 25:1

find 50:10 **findings** 12:4,17 12:21 52:15

fine 4:18 finish 61:2

finished 25:4

finishing 20:4 fire 10:22,22

firearm 38:14 **fired** 49:16

first 7:11 10:20

14:4 20:25 24:9 29:25

30:23 31:1,1 31:19,23,25

35:10,11

firsthand 26:14 fiscal 16:1

fiscally 16:1

fit 25:24 41:8 Fitzgerald 2:14

3:12 6:21,22 24:1,2,4 25:10

28:7 50:5,7,24 51:7 55:12

FITZGERALD1 6:20 6:23 7:3

five 29:23 31:13 35:11

flag 15:13

Flat 24:14,19 fliers 23:5

floor 10:22,24 24:3

fluent 22:12 focus 30:22

FOIA 18:2

Foley 42:18

folks 10:24 **follow** 54:15

follow-up 16:20

followed 24:16

follows 12:4 foot 58:24

force 12:1,11

15:10,11 37:14 38:11,13,13

Ford 29:18

foregoing 62:7 foremost 24:9

forget 30:11

forgot 34:13

formal 18:7 27:15 41:4

formally 17:21 17:21

former 42:8,12 44:1 45:14

49:7

forth 62:6 forum 25:14,18 59:10

forums 21:14

forward 5:13 28:13

four 31:8

Frederick 29:13 friendship 36:15

frisk 38:18 front 40:21

49:10 50:23

full 14:9,9 29:19

function 59:20

funding 48:17 funeral 24:13,18 26:4

furniture 11:115:16

further 14:7 62:6

furthermore

53:14

future 57:3

G

G33:8,13

Gail 7:10 gained 30:9

42:15

Gang 35:10,10 generation 30:11

34:11,11 gentleman 50:25

George 7:10 **Gerald** 29:18

getting 9:10

13:25 18:5 20:3

Gil 3:17 42:8,12 42:20 43:12,20

43:25 44:1 **Gilbert** 42:12

44:1

give 10:18 13:8 25:16 28:22 29:4 31:10,21

34:18,24 46:7 50:7

given 53:3

giving 36:3 **glad** 15:7 57:21

glance 30:24

go 4:17 14:7,8 22:21 28:22

29:7 39:9

52:20,22 56:8 goes 14:4,9

50:19

going 4:8,13,15 5:18 9:9,12,13

9:18 11:3 13:1 21:10 23:4

25:7 26:18,21

26:22 28:13 36:24 38:23

42:5,19,20

43:14 47:24

55:17 56:19 57:3 58:22

59:1 60:2

good 4:4 9:21,23

10:8 24:25 37:1,2,4 41:2

46:9,10 51:17 51:18 55:11,11

57:6

goodness 34:20 government 51:20

grand 31:17 **granted** 30:15

grasp 29:6 great 32:12 33:9

36:15 39:24 44:17 59:15

61:18 Green 47:10

groove 31:3 group 26:4 51:21

growing 34:22 guess 10:1 16:20

17:16 57:14 gun 27:1,2 46:23

gunshot 50:9,19 guys 28:22

47:8

Н	hereinbefore	36:22,23 57:5	injuries 38:12
H 32:24	62:6	hopes 29:6	38:12
Hall 52:1,13,13	heroes 30:2	hopped 35:4	inspection 52:21
52:20 53:7,16	high 24:22 34:10	hosted 21:15	Inspector 42:17
hand 53:7	high-profile	25:24	inspectors 27:23
handled 12:20	35:5 43:7	House 51:23 52:2	inspired 8:20,21
handling 36:1	highest 12:1	52:5,18 54:25	instance 49:10
60:14	47:8	55:4	instances 38:13
Hanson 7:15	highlight 30:20	housed 39:22	interact 43:11
happen 29:3	highly 28:13	housing 39:14	interactions
44:24 49:10	55:15	human 48:20,24	21:18
happened 9:2	Hill 3:17 42:8	49:15,23,24	interdiction
27:17 44:16	42:12,20 43:12	Huron 24:13,18	35:3
52 : 3	43:21 44:1		interesting
happy 8:23 9:5	Hills 42:15		25:17
45 : 7	hip 26:20	Ian 2:24 46:11	Internal 17:5,15
hard 24:20	hire 48:22	46:15,16	18:7,12 54:9
Hart 36:8,9	hired 42:25	ICU 42:21	internally 59:15
Harvard-trained	Hispanic 21:11 22:10,18	idea 44:17 IG's 54:8	introduce 6:19 7:2,7 10:2
29:14	historian 29:14	II 42:16	introductions
Harvey 37:10	historic 30:1	III 6:16 42:16	7:16
hates 19:18	history 3:14	imagine 25:2	investigate
Hayes 4:10,12	28:14,25 29:2	impact 31:15	43:11
24:11,15	29:8,8,8,9,10	important 49:3	investigated
headline 46:19	29:11,16,22,23	49:24	52:14 53:14
Headquarters 1:4	29:25 30:5,8	importantly	investigation
	29.23 30.3,0	1 THIPOT CALLCTY	1 TILVED CTGG CTCII
10:19 46:1	30:19,20,21	48:20	43:6
health 25:17	- I		_
health 25:17 26:23 42:22	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17	48:20	43:6 investigations 11:14
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1	43:6 investigations
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5 heavy 24:10	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16 53:15	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23 59:16	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21 18:23,25 19:3
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5 heavy 24:10 heck 28:15	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5 heavy 24:10 heck 28:15 held 25:14	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16 53:15 honors 30:1	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23 59:16 information 9:10	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21 18:23,25 19:3 19:8,11,17
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5 heavy 24:10 heck 28:15 held 25:14 hell 57:4	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16 53:15 honors 30:1 hope 2:17 3:14 7:4 12:18 21:6 28:12,16,18	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23 59:16 information 9:10 9:14 17:14	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21 18:23,25 19:3 19:8,11,17 20:14,19 21:3 21:9 22:3,5,7 22:12,17 23:9
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5 heavy 24:10 heck 28:15 held 25:14 hell 57:4 helped 22:8	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16 53:15 honors 30:1 hope 2:17 3:14 7:4 12:18 21:6 28:12,16,18 32:5,8,14,15	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23 59:16 information 9:10 9:14 17:14 18:6 19:4 21:12 27:8 28:24 29:5,6	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21 18:23,25 19:3 19:8,11,17 20:14,19 21:3 21:9 22:3,5,7 22:12,17 23:9 23:12,24 54:12
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5 heavy 24:10 heck 28:15 held 25:14 hell 57:4 helped 22:8 helpful 22:20	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16 53:15 honors 30:1 hope 2:17 3:14 7:4 12:18 21:6 28:12,16,18 32:5,8,14,15 32:16,19 33:1	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23 59:16 information 9:10 9:14 17:14 18:6 19:4 21:12 27:8 28:24 29:5,6 32:9,20 38:2,4	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21 18:23,25 19:3 19:8,11,17 20:14,19 21:3 21:9 22:3,5,7 22:12,17 23:9 23:12,24 54:12 54:14
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5 heavy 24:10 heck 28:15 held 25:14 hell 57:4 helped 22:8 helpful 22:20 26:5	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16 53:15 honors 30:1 hope 2:17 3:14 7:4 12:18 21:6 28:12,16,18 32:5,8,14,15 32:16,19 33:1 33:3,7,16,18	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23 59:16 information 9:10 9:14 17:14 18:6 19:4 21:12 27:8 28:24 29:5,6 32:9,20 38:2,4 44:12 48:15,16	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21 18:23,25 19:3 19:8,11,17 20:14,19 21:3 21:9 22:3,5,7 22:12,17 23:9 23:12,24 54:12 54:14 investigators
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5 heavy 24:10 heck 28:15 held 25:14 hell 57:4 helped 22:8 helpful 22:20	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16 53:15 honors 30:1 hope 2:17 3:14 7:4 12:18 21:6 28:12,16,18 32:5,8,14,15 32:16,19 33:1 33:3,7,16,18 33:22 34:20	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23 59:16 information 9:10 9:14 17:14 18:6 19:4 21:12 27:8 28:24 29:5,6 32:9,20 38:2,4 44:12 48:15,16 informed 9:14	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21 18:23,25 19:3 19:8,11,17 20:14,19 21:3 21:9 22:3,5,7 22:12,17 23:9 23:12,24 54:12 54:14 investigators 43:3
health 25:17 26:23 42:22 hear 28:14 49:5 50:9 55:23 57:21 heard 4:25 5:8 19:5 28:17 49:11 hearing 7:5 49:1 57:25 heart 3:13 24:10 25:15,25 26:6 26:8 Heavenly 4:19,24 5:5 heavy 24:10 heck 28:15 held 25:14 hell 57:4 helped 22:8 helpful 22:20 26:5 helping 7:13	30:19,20,21 31:5,8,10,13 31:14,14,17 33:12,25 34:3 34:4,7,10,14 36:8 42:14 holding 37:14 39:23,24 Hollywood 43:4 Home 24:13,18 homicide 42:14 honor 28:19 29:20 30:3 32:8 42:7 honorable 51:16 53:15 honors 30:1 hope 2:17 3:14 7:4 12:18 21:6 28:12,16,18 32:5,8,14,15 32:16,19 33:1 33:3,7,16,18	48:20 improved 38:24 incident 50:20 54:1 include 38:12 included 9:5 21:23 increase 11:11 15:6,13 19:13 increases 19:20 incredible 47:11 INDEX 3:2 indicated 34:1 indicator 38:8 individual 39:23 59:16 information 9:10 9:14 17:14 18:6 19:4 21:12 27:8 28:24 29:5,6 32:9,20 38:2,4 44:12 48:15,16	43:6 investigations 11:14 investigator 2:16,16,19,19 7:12 9:19,21 9:24,25 10:3,5 10:5,7,12 11:13 12:22 13:12,18,21,23 14:15,20 16:4 16:18,23 17:1 17:2,6,9,11,20 17:24 18:3,5 18:13,16,19,21 18:23,25 19:3 19:8,11,17 20:14,19 21:3 21:9 22:3,5,7 22:12,17 23:9 23:12,24 54:12 54:14 investigators

4:16
involved 11:17
11:22 12:3
43:6 59:12
<pre>involvement 8:23</pre>
involving 11:18
issue 13:16
20:17 25:17
45:11 49:2
59:13
issued 37:11
issues 26:20
60:4
Item 8:15
items 38:21
44:16
J

J 30:23
January 11:10,13
11:17,22 12:3
13:3,7
·
jazz 31:3
Jesus' 5:15
Jimmy 36:11
job 21:2 24:21
32:22 34:12
47:11 56:18
57:6
jobs 58:10
John 37:9
Johnson 31:5
joint 16:23
Jr 2:9
judge 27:8,9
July 37:11
Junior 6:7
Justice 37:13,18

K
keep 11:4 16:10
19:22,24 20:1
20:9,11 36:21
36:22
killing 43:8
kind 15:13 20:16
41:1
kinds 40:6
King 30:2
kingpins 35:7
knee 26:20
knew 34:6,17

know	15	. 1 6	1	Q	20
			-	-	20
15:	_		-		
18:	6 :	19:	4,	18	
21:	25	22	:2		
23:	1,	6 2	4:	9	
26:	19	27	:1	5	
29:	1 3	31:	19		
32:	8,2	21,	22		
34:	3,3	12,	16		
42:	16	,21	4	3:	16
44:	13	,15	4	8:	21
48:	23	49	:7	, 1	4
50:	9 !	51:	3	54	:1
56:	16	57	:2	3,	23
60:	13				
know.	led	lge	27	:1	7
1		-			

KIIOWII II. IC	,
35:15	
Kvra 2:17	

L
La 23:4 46:4
lack 26:14
language 21:17
Lansing 51:21
laptop 37:3
Lastly 25:1
law 46:23 47:14
lawsuit 54:10
leaders 30:1
leadership 5:10
leading 11:18,23
12 : 7
leaps 39:24
learn 25:23
31:11

10411104 50.15
32:20,21
leave 45:13
led 37:8
legendary 42:18
43:3
lesson 43:10
let's 19:25
29:22 57:5
1iconco 52.5 6

learned 30:13

license 52:5,6
53:6,11,17,18
53:19
lieutenant 2:18
3:15 7:5 35:18
35:21 37:1,3,6
39:2,5,10,16

39:20,22 40:8
40:13,14
Lieutenants 25:4
lift 5:1,2,2 31:6 42:7,20
31:6 42:7,20
43:20
Light 47:11
Lightfoot 52:19
likes 31:4
limit 46:7 Lincoln 29:14
Linda 2:2 25:22
line 34:8
liquor 52:5,6,15
52:20 53:6,11
53:17,18,19
55:2
Lisa 2:3 4:6
listen 59:1
little 13:2
21:19 22:1
28:20,23 31:12
57.15 58.11
21:19 22:1 28:20,23 31:12 34:18,24 56:18 57:15 58:11 lobbied 43:17
10001CG 10.17
lobbvist 51:20
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2
local 25:2 located 24:13
local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23
local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20
local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17
local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 lock 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15 Lord 5:1
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15 Lord 5:1 lose 24:10
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15 Lord 5:1 lose 24:10 loss 53:25,25
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15 Lord 5:1 lose 24:10 loss 53:25,25 lost 54:2
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15 Lord 5:1 lose 24:10 loss 53:25,25 lost 54:2
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15 Lord 5:1 lose 24:10 loss 53:25,25 lost 54:2 lot 34:6,13 35:4 35:5,5 53:23 love 5:6 48:19
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15 Lord 5:1 lose 24:10 loss 53:25,25 lost 54:2 lot 34:6,13 35:4 35:5,5 53:23 love 5:6 48:19
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15 Lord 5:1 lose 24:10 loss 53:25,25 lost 54:2 lot 34:6,13 35:4 35:5,5 53:23 love 5:6 48:19
lobbyist 51:20 local 25:2 located 24:13 46:1,4 51:23 54:20 location 24:17 long 34:2 36:6 41:8 look 15:16 26:6 26:7,7,13 36:7 38:15,17,20 48:3 looked 43:1 50:17 looks 47:15 Lord 5:1 lose 24:10 loss 53:25,25 lost 54:2

_							_						
_				_	_			_	_	_		_	_
	14 16 17 18 19 23 50 50 57 ad	1: 7: 8: 7: 8: 7: 8: 7: 8: 9: 9: 9: 9: 9: 9: 9: 9: 9: 9	11221221415	2734030 , 1	,, ,,65	1 2 1 1 1 2 2 5 5	095896754:8	, :: : 02:	2 1 1 2 2 3 3 :0 3	470,0,21,,	:,7:1:827	1 2 1 2 2	0 0 3
Ma ma	20 24 30 41 44 48 57 ad): :: :: :: :: :: :: :: ::	2 2 8 9 9 i	კ , 4	4 4 1 5	3 2 5 1 8 1	3 : : : 2 6	: 6 1 5 1 2	4 0 0 3 :	, 4 : , 5	1 4 2 1	9 : 7	7
	ai ••												Ь
ma	aj	0:	r -	_ _	2	:	<i>ک</i>	2	ろ つ	Э	:	Ю	
	a k 22 56	2:	1 9	5		3	6	:	4	,	1	4	
	39 42 al 6:39 40 42 48): 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	8 1 2 2 2 2	, t 3 1	4 2 t 9	0 5 2 :4 4	: :4 0 1	1 9 ,::	9 9 1 2	,	1	9	
ma	an				2	3							
ma ma ma	an an 37 an an	aq aq da da	ge ge 9	e e: e:	4 ne r	1 2 2	3 3	: 8	3 :		:	6	
Ma	an ar 51 ar	n c :	ii e: 1 h	1 9	L 1	18 :	8	2	:	2		6	

Luther 30:2 lying 24:16

37:20 45:25
46:4 Maria 23:3 Marion 45:13 mark 24:23 36:4
36:14 Martin 30:2 marvel 49:23
materials 23:6 matter 13:24 52:14 53:14 59:9,10
<pre>matter's 59:11 Mayor 4:23 8:22 45:14 47:12,15</pre>
McCoy-O'Neill 2:16 McS 55:10 mean 27:1 50:13
meaning 43:4 measure 38:8 media 48:15 55:10
meeting 1:2 4:6 9:1,7 21:6 23:8 41:7,8 45:24 46:3
59:7 61:17,19 62:5 meetings 10:7
56:20 meets 41:9 member 42:23
57 : 4
members 4:22 5:16 8:1,13 9:23 16:9 37:2 41:19 44:4 51:18 56:12,14 56:19 58:9,11 61:15
Memorial 24:12
24:18 men 24:20 30:13 46:23
mention 26:18 mentioned 24:10 47:12,15
<pre>mentioning 55:15 mic 58:21 Michael 2:18 Michigan 1:6 4:1</pre>

21:15 24:12,14 24:18 39:17 40:2 46:2	1
51:21 52:15 Microphone 39:8	
middle 34:2	
midnight 35:19	
mild 19:22	
miles 31:4 47:6	
47:7 48:18	
million 47:23	
48:4,18,22 millionaire	
30:24	
mind 16:10 19:22	2
19:24	_
minor 25:6	
minute 49:12	
58:24	
minutes 3:8 8:5	
8:6,10 46:8 48:7 61:3	
48:7 61:3	
Miseducation	
33:9	
mishap 25:6	_
Mississippi 34:8	პ =
MLCC 52:15,23,25 53:2,2	ر
moderator 26:2	
modest 43:15	
modification	
16:6	
moment 4:13	
Mona 7:15 62:3	
62:12	
Monday 10:23	
52:21	
money 48:4,17 monies 49:13	
month 3.14 11.9	
26:17 28:14	
29:2,9,9,19,2	4
29:25 30:5.8	
30:19,21 31:5	
30:19,21 31:5 31:8,10,13	
month 3:14 11:9 26:17 28:14 29:2,9,9,19,2 29:25 30:5,8 30:19,21 31:5 31:8,10,13 33:12,25	
33:12,25	
33:12,25 monthly 11:10 months 13:2	
33:12,25 monthly 11:10 months 13:2	
33:12,25	

14:19 28:3,4,5 28:10 32:6,12 50:2,3,4,22 51:5,8 61:10 61:12
morale 38:22
morning 24:16 33:23 52:9,22 52:24
Mother 58:22 59:14 61:1
motion 7:21 8:3 8:6,15 41:21 43:21 44:6,13 44:20,22 61:9 move 5:13 7:22
8:7 10:23 15:14 21:21 41:11 61:10,11 moved 7:24 8:9 41:15 43:24
61:13 moves 16:8
moving 11:5 39:13 57:16 Multi 55:10 Munoz 23:3,18
Murphy 42:17,18 Museum 32:24 music 31:3
N
4 6 5 4 5

music 31:3
N
name 4:6 5:15 29:15 36:3 46:7,13 51:19 52:1 name's 37:5 Nancy 27:8 Narcotics 34:17 35:1 nation 31:18
<pre>nature 59:14 near 54:23 necessarily 20:1</pre>
necessary 16:15
56:10 need 4:25 5:1,3 10:8 15:18 16:12,15 20:16 38:9 44:13,19 44:21 49:18 56:6 60:9

needed 15:20 29:19 needs 14:7 22:18 55:18 Negro 29:11,16 33:9 34:3 neighborhood 46:22 **Nelson** 2:19 10:6 **never** 30:13,17 53:7,8 Nevertheless 41:1 **new** 37:23 42:3 47:15 News 46:20 Nichols 2:19 10:4 **night** 5:8 52:3 53:10,16,25 nightclub 51:23 52:17 Ninth 11:21 **non** 53:18 normally 11:24 **notes** 57:7 62:9 notified 56:20 number 14:13,16 14:17 19:14 24:23 36:17 40:21 **numbers** 17:18 19:18 20:2,6 nutritionist 26:9

0 **observe** 31:9 obviously 20:10 22:13 Occasionally 40:22 occupy 15:19 occupying 10:21 16:8 occur 45:16 **occurred** 17:19 39:17 57:15 **OCI** 3:11 9:19 15:14 offer 41:10 **office** 2:13 10:4

13:19,22 14:12

10:6 11:2,13 12:22 15:15 16:7,8 18:23 21:7 22:1 54:8 officer 28:5 34:17 35:19 38:14 48:24,25 49:15,17 officers 11:18 12:14,23 17:18 26:19 27:23 42:24 43:17 48:22 49:4,8 49:18 53:21 Officers' 3:9 offices 15:25 official 53:19
often-neglected
29:20 oftentimes 19:19 Oh 18:4 34:20 36:22 40:1 46:16 58:2 okay 5:20 9:18 13:10 16:4 17:20,24 18:20 20:12,19 22:6 22:16 23:25 28:16 37:4,4 39:10,10 40:1 44:18 45:1,9 45:18 51:8 54:15,25 55:4 57:19 old 3:20 45:22 45:23
once 15:15 16:6
24:22 25:3 43:19 one-on-one 56:8 one-page 23:5 open 11:14 15:15 operations 23:3 35:7 47:21 opinion 16:2 opinions 60:1 opportunity 4:21 5:12 8:18 12:19 26:17 29:20 30:20 31:11 opposed 8:2,14
JP0000 0.2,11

41:20 44	• 5
61:16	• 0
oral 3:22	46:6
order 3:4	38:22
53:2,3	
$\mathbf{ordered}\ 52$:20
53:2	00 10
originally	
orthopedic	
26:19	.5
Osborn 46:2	22
outcomes 4	
outstandin	
47:14	
overall 19 21:16 35	:17
oversight	:21 27.10
57:13,14	3/:19
overview 25	5:16
37:7	
Oxendine 7	• 1 0
Oxenaine /	• 10
	. 10
P	
P.m1:3 4:3	
P p.m 1:3 4:3 45:25 61	3 :19
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45	3 :19 :8
P p.m 1:3 4:3 45:25 61	3 :19 :8 :13,15
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 59:24	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 59:24 pages 23:7	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 59:24 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 59:24 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4 62:7 67:11
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 page 3:3 22 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4 62:7 67:11
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 59:24 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4 62:7 67:11
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 page 3:3 22 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4 62:7 67:11 2:15 21:7
P p.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 59:24 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22 pamphlets 2 21:13 panelists 2	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4 62:7 67:11 2:15 21:7
P p.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 59:24 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22 pamphlets 2 21:13 panelists 2 panic 28:8 paperwork	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4 62:7 67:11 2:15 21:7 26:5
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 page 3:3 22 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22 pamphlets 2 pamphlets 2 panic 28:8 paperwork 9 Pardon 54:3	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4 62:7 67:11 2:15 21:7 26:5
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 59:24 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22 pamphlets 2 21:13 panelists 2 panic 28:8 paperwork 9 Pardon 54:3	3:19:8::13,15:2:4:4:62:7:6:7:11 2:15:21:7 26:5 53:9 18 30:14
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 page 3:3 22 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22 pamphlet 22 pamphlets 2 panic 28:8 paperwork 9 part 25:24 31:16 34	3:19:8::13,15:2:4:4:62:7:6:7:11 2:15:21:7 26:5 53:9 18 30:14
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 page 3:3 22 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22 pamphlet 22 pamphlets 2 21:13 panelists 2 panic 28:8 paperwork 3 part 25:24 31:16 34 35:2	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4 62:7 67:11 2:15 21:7 26:5 53:9 18 30:14 :3
P.m1:3 4:3 45:25 61 package 45 packets 12 page 3:3 22 page 3:3 22 pages 23:7 Pamela 2:16 9:25 pamphlet 22 pamphlet 22 pamphlets 2 panic 28:8 paperwork 9 part 25:24 31:16 34	3 :19 :8 :13,15 2:4 62:7 67:11 2:15 21:7 26:5 53:9 18 30:14 :3

8:23 25:24 40:22 41:3,6 partnered 25:25

partnering 26:22

pass 18:8 19:4

50:18

23:13
<pre>patrol 49:7</pre>
patrols 46:24
patrols 46:24 patrons 52:7
pacions 32.7
pause 30:5
pending 10:16
people 5:1,10 21:23 22:8
21:23 22:8
26:/,15 30:15
31:9,11,17
35:6 43:12,12
people's 41:5
percent 11:11,17
11.10 20 20 21
11:19,20,20,21
11:24,25 12:1
12:2,5,5,6,7,9
12:10,10,11
15:6,9,10,11
15:13 19:13
47:20
performance
38:17
person 56:7
59:12
<pre>personnel 38:1</pre>
49:18
10 1
persons 40:4
Phase 10:20
Phase 10:20
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2 pieces 47:14
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2 pieces 47:14 pilot 47:5
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2 pieces 47:14 pilot 47:5 pipeline 9:9
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2 pieces 47:14 pilot 47:5 pipeline 9:9
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2 pieces 47:14 pilot 47:5 pipeline 9:9 place 15:17
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2 pieces 47:14 pilot 47:5 pipeline 9:9 place 15:17 29:11 47:8
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2 pieces 47:14 pilot 47:5 pipeline 9:9 place 15:17 29:11 47:8 57:6 59:13,19
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2 pieces 47:14 pilot 47:5 pipeline 9:9 place 15:17 29:11 47:8 57:6 59:13,19 60:8 62:5
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21 47:16 piecemeal 36:2 pieces 47:14 pilot 47:5 pipeline 9:9 place 15:17 29:11 47:8 57:6 59:13,19 60:8 62:5 plan 43:10 54:10
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21
Phase 10:20 Phillis 30:25 phone 52:10 picked 43:5 piece 31:21

plenty 13:5 plus 54:2
PO 36:11
poet 31:1
poetry 30:25
point 20:2 21:5 40:4,10 41:2
40:4,10 41:2
48:21
police 1:1 2:14
2:15 4:5,22
5:12 9:16 15:7
24:21 31:20,24
32:1 41:12 42:10,13 46:3
46:19,25 47:19
47:24 48:22,23
48:25 49:4.7
48:25 49:4,7 49:15,18 51:17 52:11,16,25 53:5,8,10,21
52:11,16,25
53:5,8,10,21
56:4 59:22
POLICE'S 2:13
policies 38:9
policing 48:5
<pre>policy 38:6</pre>
40:17,25
politics 60:5
position 50:5,8
50:15 55:18 57:1
positions 50:8
positive 21:20
possible 44:12
posted 11:4
power 53:13
PowerPoint 21:19
powers 18:8
<pre>pray 4:18,21,22</pre>
4:23 5:13
43:19
prayers 42:21
Precinct 11:19
11:20,21 35:19 52:2
predictable 40:5
predictable 40:3 predominant 34:9
preface 39:12
presence 48:21
49:24
<pre>present 5:23,25</pre>
6:2,4,6,10,12
6:14 7:11 10:2

30:18 37:7
presentation
22:20 23:16 28:14 33:15,17 36:25 47:4
28:14 33:15,17
36.25 47.4
presented 33:25
presenting 42:24
president 29:18
42:8,12 44:1
42:0,12 44:1
55:3
<pre>pretty 19:13,14</pre>
35:24
previous 16:21
48:16
<pre>printed 53:20</pre>
<pre>prior 39:13,19</pre>
39:20,21,22
<pre>prisoners 39:23</pre>
privilege 42:7
60:13
privileges 30:9
probable 38:15
probably 9:4
10:23 15:23
23:7 51:2
problem 20:20
44:25 45:19 procedure 11:24
procedure 11:24
12:8,10
procedures 38:10
<pre>proceedings 62:4</pre>
process 8:24
9:11 13:4,6,19
13:24,25 14:10
14:25 15:3
25 : 4
processed 25:5
processes 37:23
<pre>program 47:11,22</pre>
promoted 35:17
<pre>proof 53:1</pre>
proposal 47:4
provide 12:24
provides 30:19
30:21
provision 37:24
provisions 38:3
provocative 41:3
public 1:4 34:5
46:1 55:9,25
56:9 57:23
59:10,20 60:17

publish 31:2 pursuits 38:18 push-back 40:9 put 22:8 28:15 29:3 35:5 45:8 47:13 50:11,12 putting 9:13 22:14 **puzzle** 47:16

0

qualifications 55:15 qualified 56:3 questions 13:10 13:11 20:21 23:21 25:9 28:12 32:4 38:25 39:2 40:11 51:9 quick 10:18 quickly 11:524:6 44:11 Ouinn 2:17 7:14 **quite** 21:20 **quorum** 6:17

R R6:9 62:1 race 31:17 races 31:10 racial 30:4 Raj 26:2 ranks 36:13 reaching 22:1 read 15:3 29:5 42:5 48:15 reading 33:10,11 **ready** 55:19 real 24:6 44:11 really 8:21 28:25 29:1 34:11 43:2 47:18 53:12 **reason** 53:17 reasons 29:23 reassure 21:18 recall 34:1 **receive** 12:18 13:4 18:10 received 11:16 12:16 14:25

54:13 receptive 33:24 recognition 42:4 42:8,11,15 43:15,25 recognize 29:1 recommend 33:10 recommendation 27:16 recommended 28:13 record 9:24 42:5 46:14 recorded 62:4 recorder 7:14 **rectify** 12:25 red 15:13 reduced 20:7 reference 41:2 referenced 18:1 **reflect** 41:22 reflects 53:6 regarding 9:8,15 28:14 regards 24:6 46:21 **Reginald** 2:5 6:3 REGULAR 1:2 regulations 56:3 56:12 relates 40:7 41:6 relations 51:20 55:9 release 38:3 released 26:11 remember 30:5 remembrance 4:9 remind 39:5 **reminded** 34:14 reminder 41:4 **reminds** 31:14 removed 52:5Renee 52:13,13

report 3:9,11,18

8:16 9:17,19

reporter 7:15

reports 12:24

reporting 7:16

53:8

21:17

13:8 20:5 21:4

22:8,9 40:16 representation 43:5 REPRESENTING 2:13 represents 11:11 reputation 53:25 request 13:7 17:21 18:7 19:6 21:5 42:19 requested 18:22 required 33:11 38:2 40:25 research 48:13 resolved 15:22 59:11 **respect** 56:24 57:12,13 59:15 60:8,24 respected 55:19 respectful 56:25 respond 16:5 49:5,17 50:1 responding 49:1 response 24:22 49:2,11 Responsibilities responsibility 16:1 responsible 38:1 rest 7:8 52:8,9 results 13:17 resume 34:19 **retired** 42:13 retrain 38:9 returned 52:14 revenue 54:2 review 10:16 12:19 14:5 revise 38:9 rewarding 4:20 **Ricardo** 2:6 6:9 **Richard** 2:8 6:13 **right** 7:6,11 10:12 11:9 14:3 16:8 19:8 19:9,11 20:8 20:14 22:11 24:23 26:12 28:11,18 40:15



49:10 50:12,20 55:4,6,21 57:17 58:4,9 58:16 59:4,6 59:25 61:4 **rights** 3:15 30:15 36:25 37:6,8 60:13 **risk** 47:1 River 24:13,18 **Robbery** 35:14 Robert 2:22 7:12 23:2 31:5 Rock 24:14,19 role 21:19 42:17 roll 5:19 room 16:12 32:24 46:2 **Roop** 26:2 Rosalia 22:5 rules 56:3,12 ruling 27:8 run 32:4 running 32:5 S

sacrifice 30:3 **sad** 21:21 **safe** 49:20 **Safety** 1:4 46:1 **Saginaw** 48:14 **sake** 16:1 30:4 45:12 sample 51:1Sanders 2:11 6:11,12 41:14 44:8,10,19 45:21 Saturday 51:25 **saw** 50:20 **saying** 19:23 39:12 47:6 **says** 36:3 45:15 schedules 32:10 **school** 34:2,2,5 34:9,10 Scott 4:12 52:1 53:7 seasonal 19:19 **seat** 7:11 **second** 2:20 9:6 9:8 29:12

43:23 **secure** 30:16 **Sed** 23:4 46:4 **see** 15:12 20:4,5 23:18 38:22 40:1 49:11 50:16,16 52:22 53:4 57:2 59:6 60:11,11 seeing 36:14 55:11 **seek** 31:6 sees 26:14 41:8 **seize** 29:19 self-made 30:23 **send** 14:1 45:7 46:24 sends 24:6 Senior 22:5 46:4 seniors 60:22 61:1 **sense** 43:3 **sent** 12:16 52:16 September 39:18 sergeant 2:17 7:14 35:14,17 36:10 52:1,19 52:20 53:7,7 53:16 Sergeant's 25:2 serious 42:22 servants 36:2 **served** 35:21 **service** 12:1,10 24:17 35:24 serving 36:5 60:25 **set** 45:15,15 62:6 **sets** 47:25 **seven** 10:15 20:6 **Seventh** 10:21 **share** 5:4 29:22 sharing 34:14 **sheet** 44:12 **Shelby** 2:8 6:13 6:14 51:24 54:19,20 **shift** 35:20 **shooting** 47:8,20 48:2

shot 48:13,25 50:6,11 shot-spotter 46:21 **shots** 46:24 49:1 49:5,16 **show** 28:15 38:7 53:1 **shows** 53:9 **shut** 52:8,17,21 **side** 10:22,22 60:9,10 significantly 20:7 silence 4:14 Simms 2:18 3:15 7:5 37:1,3,5 39:2,10,16,20 39:22 40:8,13 40:14 Sims 17:11 18:16 18:18 sir 6:25 7:6 20:10 21:3 22:3 25:19 27:10 28:2 48:8,12 51:14 55:4 58:18 **sit** 59:4 60:2 sitting 6:24 **sixth** 10:24 11:19 **skill** 47:25 **skills** 43:12 **Smith** 2:25 55:9 55:9,13,21,23 57:12,17,21,24 58:4,6,8,14,20 58:24 59:1,4,6 60:11 61:4 **sold** 50:21 **somber** 31:3 **someone's** 14:16 somewhat 27:14**soon** 15:22 **sorry** 4:17 11:15 15:10 soulful 31:3 sound 16:1southwest 22:21 **space** 15:19

16:13,14,16

spaces 16:9 **Spanish** 22:13,20 23:16 **speak** 14:14 25:14 26:4 31:6 50:23 52:12 59:18 60:16 SPEAKERS 2:23 speaking 24:7 42:10 59:3 60:14,15,22 **speaks** 3:12 **spins** 50:19 spirit 5:14 **spoke** 33:23 52:13 sponsored 25:23 sponsoring 26:18 spotlight 58:8 **spotter** 48:13,25 50:6,11 spreadsheet 16:21 18:14,22 spreadsheets 18:12 **spurs** 31:5 **Squad** 35:10,10 **square** 47:6,6 48:18 **squat** 15:20 squatting 16:14 **staff** 7:1,8 10:2 17:1 Stair 26:2 stand 27:24 standard 11:25 standing 3:18 40:15 43:4 **start** 25:4 started 36:8 starting 47:13 **state** 5:8 8:19 24:16 39:13 **stated** 15:23 20:10 57:18 **States** 29:18 statistical 22:9 statistics 10:13 11:9 **stayed** 35:20 stenographic



shortly 7:5

62:8 stenographically
62:4 stewards 30:9 stop 38:18
stopping 32:10 stories 8:21 30:6,10,12
31:18 Storm 7:15 62:3 62:12
story 28:21 29:5 story-telling 28:20
Strategic 51:21 street 1:5 46:2 46:5 49:4,9
streets 35:13 stress 26:11 strong 5:11
stuck 24:8 Students 30:14 stuff 49:14
subject 27:6 submitted 10:15 Subsequently
35:9 successful 35:16
suffer 26:15,20 suffered 53:24 suffering 26:8
30:3 suitable 39:25 suite 10:23
<pre>summary 12:12 Supervising 2:19 10:5</pre>
<pre>supervisor 10:16 support 7:23,25 8:8 41:13,14 43:22 51:12 61:12</pre>
supported 8:9 41:15 43:24 61:13
<pre>supporting 25:21 supposed 56:13 sure 9:4 13:5 14:11 15:17 19:4,5 21:9,22 22:1 26:13 39:24 49:20</pre>

surveillance
35:4
survivors 26:6
<pre>sustained 12:5,7</pre>
12:21,21 16:22
18:22
sweated 30:16
system 34:5
systems 50:18

T 62:1,1 **table** 49:8 **take** 30:15 32:23 46:6 51:4 60:9 take-away 26:10 taken 17:17 47:1 53:6 62:5 **takes** 13:3 57:6 talk 9:7 21:19 22:19 23:17 26:23 49:3 56:8,24 **talked** 22:13 48:17 target 38:14 **task** 35:12 taskforce 35:15 tasks 37:22,25 **taught** 56:25 taverns 25:3 taxpayers 39:6 **teach** 34:4 **team** 10:21,25 11:2 16:7 17:12 35:16 37:21,21 **teams** 10:21 technology 47:1 47:18,25 48:19 48:19 49:22,22 49:23 50:8 51:4,12 **tell** 30:10 49:6 49:8 55:17 56:2 telling 30:12 58:6 **ten** 6:17

terms 5:10 15:3 15:14 16:22 17:15,16,18

	2 2 3 4 4	1 2 5 4 3 7	: : : : : .	1 2 1 5 2	5 5 4 ,	, 2 , 1	2 3 1 2 1 4	1:72,	, 1	2 5 3 4 8 1	3 4 0 , 3	: : 2	1 5 0	0
t:	5 es 4 5 6 0	21	۲.	321 ir k 975	'n	1	7	7	6	2	•	5		5
				972112										
	_	7	•	1 2 4 2 7 2		_	\sim	•	_	ン				4
	2333344445556	8 2 3 6 1	: : : : :	2 1 3 1 2 2	, 4 , 8 3 2	1,7,	0 1 ,2 4 2	, 9 8 2 0 4	1,	9 3 1 3 1 2	3 4 6 3 5	: , : ,	2 1 1	6 9 4
	4 4 4 5 5 5	4 5 9 4 7 8	: : : : : :	7 2 2 1 7	0 5 7 9	5	5 4 5 5 8 6	:815 :0	2 :::1 ::	,7 1 5 ,1	3 , 4 , 1 ₇	,8,66.	9 1 , 1	5 7 8
m 1	6 ha										•	′	_	•
t!	h:	Ĺ1	1	g	9	:	6	,	6		4	1	:	2
	2	5 8 8	1 : :		5 5 3	1	6 3 4	: 8	1:	2	7	,	2	3
t]	h: 1	1.1 5	n] :	k 2	1 3	2	: 1	\cap		1	6	5	:	1
	4	2	•	22123221	J		3 4 4 5	4	•	Τ	О	, 2	2	1

51:1,1 56:7,1 third1: 46:2 5 third-pa 37:19	2 5 5 5 5 2	55 59 25	:1 :1 :2	8 7 3
46:2 5	2:2	2		
third-pa	ırt	У		
37:19				
thorough	1 21	L:	5	
thorough	ıly	3	2:	18
thought	34:	: 6		
three 8: 15:2 1	25	1	5:	1
15:2 1	7:2	25		
18:11	26:	: 1	6	
30:19	47:	: 6		
Thursday	1:	: 3	4	:2
7:20 8	:5	1	0:	13
45:25				
Thursday			:1	1
ticket 5				
tidbits			4	
29:4 3				
tilts 50	:19)	_	
time 4:8 6:18 7	, 15	5	5:	18
6:18 7	:19)	8:	4
8:15 9	:18	3 _	_	
11:12	13:	: 5	, 9 -	
16:2,1	4 2	23	: '/	
8:15 9 11:12 16:2,1 24:22 34:2 3 39:25 49:2,1	28:	:1	1	
34:2 3	6:6),	24	
39:25	46:	: 6	_	
49:2,1	1 5) /	:8	
59:2,1	8 (οU	:8	
62:5				
timely 3	/: ∠	2.2		
38:16		_	Λ.	0 E
times 49 today 7 :	: 0 1 1	2	9: •7	25
10.12	14 21.	و.	• /	
10:13 25:1 2	24. Q.1	. O		
34:4 3	0 . J 5 . 1	15		
36:14				
46:12,			ρ.	16
51:22	10 53,	- ⊿	0. 1	2
59:23	JJ.	. ¬	, _	_
Todd 42:	17	5	2.	11
token 43			٠.	
told 8:2			• 2	Ο
52:19				J
tolerate				1
58:14,	1.5	, ,	•	_
tomorrow		1 •	1 .	11
23:14	24.	- • · • 1	-, 6	
25:5		-	-	

top 12:9 42:14 43:3 50:12 total 10:14 tour 32:7 35:7 35:18 tow 9:11 towing 9:8,10,15 toxins 26:11 trailblazers 43:1 training 36:12 transcript 62:7 62:8 transfer 27:17 40:2 transition 34:12 37:17 translating 23:4 35:5 transparency 45:12 **travel** 20:17 tremendously 53:24 trend 19:25 20:8 trending 24:25 trouble 5:3 true 62:8 truly 28:18 36:1 36:1,5 **truth** 45:12 57:14 **try** 29:5 50:10 51:1 trying 36:1,2,16 Tuesday 5:8 52:24 **turned** 53:21 **Tuskegee** 30:12 **two** 10:2,20 13:2 18:11 23:6 26:6 29:20 30:8 37:12 46:8 48:7 50:7 61:3 **two-page** 23:5 **type** 43:18 59:19 60:3

U.S 30:24 37:12 Uh-huh 13:18

23:19 **Um-hmm** 25:12 undergoing 42:22 understand 49:21 understanding 11:4 underway 10:19 10:20 11:5 unfortunately 24:8 50:13 unfounded 12:6 **unified** 59:22 unique 34:21 **United** 21:15 29:17 units 11:18 **unity** 5:14 **unknown** 11:17 12:14 **update** 9:12 10:18 **upset** 55:15 **urban** 34:13 use 15:9,10 37:14 38:13 48:1,5 uses 38:11,13 **usually** 11:25

V

valid 52:5 **Vann** 6:16 vehicle 38:17 vendor 47:2 50:25 51:2 Vernor 46:5 **verses** 30:25 Vice-Chair 4:10 4:16,18 5:23 6:2 20:23,25 21:4,10 22:6 22:11,16 25:11 25:13 26:24 33:19,22 34:21 42:6 43:23 44:7 55:22 57:18,22 58:13 58:17,19,21,25 59:2,5,8 60:12 Vice-Chairperson 2:4

violent 48:1

visibility 24:22 visionary 5:9,9 visitation 24:11

W

Wait 58:24 waiting 11:1 walk-through 15:15 **Walker** 30:23 want 9:6 13:5 15:2 16:5,20 16:25 19:12 20:9,25 21:1 21:25 28:25 33:19 45:16 48:14 51:12 55:23 56:14 57:22,24 58:22 59:8 60:6,16 wanted 25:18 43:19 46:25 47:10 wants 51:3 warmer 19:20 warrants 35:13 Washington 2:20 3:13 9:8 25:14 25:19,20 27:2 27:4,7,10,13 27:21 28:2 45:14 54:23 wasn't 56:1,2,10 watching 57:2 way 9:5 34:10 56:24 we'll 15:24 32:1 46:6 we're 4:13 9:5,9 9:14,18 13:1 16:13 20:8 25:5 26:18,21 26:22 32:10 36:4,4,24 41:4 42:20 51:1,3 54:9 57:16,19 we've 12:20 25:25 35:25 40:3 50:11,17 weather 19:20,21 20:16

week 4:13 8:17 8:17 9:3,17 11:8 12:16,16 15:23 22:14 27:11 29:11,12 29:16,18 44:16 55:14 57:15 weekend 24:24,24 weekly 4:6 weeks 9:9 11:3 15:1,2,2 17:25 40:22 weight 26:21 welcome 4:514:21 15:15 26:3 42:2 57:13 58:5 went 43:8 48:13 52:24 53:10 56:17 weren't8:18 West 24:13,18 46:5 whatsoever 53:9 Wheatley 30:25 White 51:23 52:2 52:4,18 54:25 55:4 wife 34:8 **William** 2:18 37:5 Willie 2:4,7 5:22 6:1 winter 19:23 witness 37:15 52:4 woman 56:23 women 24:20 30:14 46:23 women's 55:17 wonderful 22:8 23:10 32:22,23 **Woodson** 29:15 33:8,13 word 5:1,9 words 45:13 48:25 work 8:20 10:8 38:20 51:13 57:3 worked 35:3,3,9 35:24 36:11



wee 27:21

working $18:1$
23:2 24:20
34:17 49:4
50:16
worry 61:5
Wright 32:24
write 57:25 58:2
wrote 53:8

X

Y
yeah 7:3 13:23
14:10 17:3
36:22 45:5
50:24 57:22
<pre>year 11:12,12</pre>
12:20 13:1
15:23 16:21
17:19 19:1,13
35:23 47:3
48:23 51:1
yearlong 12:19
years 8:25 20:7
35:3,11,20,22
36:5 37:16
42:23 48:14,24
Yep 18:25
<pre>yesterday 25:15</pre>
25:21,22,24
York 47:15
young 36:10
Younger 36:11

1
1 2:8 3:4,10,15
3:19
1.248:18,22
1:30 52:1
1:40 52:1
10 3:21 11:20
10:00 24:16
107 11:15 12:2,8
10th 23:11 46:4
11 3:22
11:00 24:17
12 3:23 11:20
12:1,7

12:00 16:11 12th 11:20 35:19 13 39:21,22 1301 1:5 46:2 137 10:14 14 24:23 35:20 14-minute 24:23 15 12:6 51:2 157 11:14 159 11:22 16 48:18 17 12:5
18 3:8 18,000 54:2 18th 8:5,10 37:11 19 47:6 1926 29:11
1976 29:17

2
2 3 : 5
2,000 5:11
2002 31:23
2003 37:11
2004 31:25
2013 39:18
2014 37:17
2015 4:2 2016 1:3 3:7,8
8:10 10:14
11:10,13 21:21
37:20 45:25
46:4
20th 51:25
21 11:11 15:5,12
19:13
21st 48:5
24 3:12 11:25
47:20
25 1:3 3:7,13
4:2
25th 7:20 10:14 37:16
26 12:10
20 12.10

28 3:14 11:24

29 36:5 29th 35:23 2nd 37:20

32:5 3:6

3:00 1:3 45:25 3:01 4:3	
30895 24:13,18 313 14:18	
35 12:5,9	
36 35:21 37 3:15	
38 11:17 3rd 45:25	

42:43:4,5,7 4:0014:17 4:0861:19 403:1848:24 413:19 423:17 453:20,21 463:22 4820546:22 482261:6	4
4:08 61:19 40 3:18 48:24 41 3:19 42 3:17 45 3:20,21 46 3:22 48205 46:22	4 2:4 3:4,5,7
40 3:18 48:24 41 3:19 42 3:17 45 3:20,21 46 3:22 48205 46:22	4:00 14:17
41 3:19 42 3:17 45 3:20,21 46 3:22 48205 46:22	4:08 61:19
42 3:17 45 3:20,21 46 3:22 48205 46:22	40 3:18 48:24
45 3:20,21 46 3:22 48205 46:22	41 3:19
46 3:22 48205 46:22	42 3:17
48205 46:22	45 3:20,21
	46 3:22
48226 1 : 6	48205 46:22
	48226 1:6

5	
5 2:7 3:6,8	
5:00 24:12	
50 47:23 48:4	
50s 42:25	
54 43:1	
55 43:1	
596-2499 14:18	

U
6 2:3 3:9 11:19
11:21
6:00 16:11
61 3:23
62 62:7
625 51:24 54:20
7
7 2:6 3:11

70 15:9,10

7150 46:5
8
83:7,8,9,18 12:11 8:0014:17 24:12 8015:11 8847:17

93:11,208:15 12:2,10 9010:1715:11 9111:10,14,15 11:16,16,22

